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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEASREE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 71, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business
strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has

more than 48 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 69, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a co-
founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and administration of
the Group. He has more than 48 years" experience in the plastics industry and he was
awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 62, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is in
charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong
was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems
Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D
degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical companies

prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 60, is responsible for credit control of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She
joined the Group in 1977 and she has more than 33 years' experience in plastic materials

trading.

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 53, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group and the
General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co,, Ltd. He is responsible
for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and key accounts in the
Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a
Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He
joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has

over 29 years' experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.
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Biographies of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr HUI Yan Kuen, aged 41 is the Southern China General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials
Ltd. and is responsible for sales and marketing of plastic materials in Hong Kong and
other cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Civil Engineering from
Queen’s University, Ontario, Canada and also holds a Master degree of Business and
Administration from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over |3 years' experience in business management, sales &
marketing. Mr HUI Yan Kuen is the son of Mr HUI Sai Chung (who is the Chairman of the
Company) and the brother of Mr HUI Yan Kit and Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey (both are

the senior management of the subsidiaries of the Company).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 67, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 68, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic Material Ltd.
He has more than 41 years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the Honorary
Lifetime Chairman of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong
Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Honorary Chairman of The Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology
Centre and Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He has also

been awarded the Chief Executive's Commendation for Community Service.

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 48, is a financial consultant. He has more than 26 vears
of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting. Mr Ching had been the
executive director, finance director, company secretary and qualified accountant of the
Company. He also worked as the chief financial officer and company secretary of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He obtained a Bachelor's
degree in Business Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an
Executive Master degree in Business Administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and
2006, respectively. Mr Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a

member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEASREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, aged 63, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic
Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.,, Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. and
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and is responsible for the
overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ng holds a
Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director of the
above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 37 years' experience in
plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ng has held several key positions
in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and product

marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, aged 47, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing in the
Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from The University
of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the University of
South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 24 years' experience in sales

& marketing.

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 45, is the Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of Hong
Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“FCCA”") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“FCPA™). He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder
(“CFA™) and a Certified Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"). He has over 22 years' experience
in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, information

technology, administration and human resources management of the Group.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr HUI Yan Kit, aged 45, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic Materials
Co., Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches and
Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and other cities in Eastern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of Toronto. He joined the
Group in 1998 and has over 20 years' experience in business management, sales &
marketing. Mr HUI Yan Kit is the son of Mr HUI Sai Chung and the brother of Mr HUI
Yan Lung, Geoffrey and Mr HUI Yan Kuen.

Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 44, is the General Manager of Dongguan Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible for sales and
marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in
Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor degree
with honors in Arts (Major in Economics) from Queen's University, Ontario, Canada. He
joined the Group in 2004 and has over |18 years' experience in business management,
sales & marketing,. Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr HUI Sai Chung and the
brother of Mr HUI Yan Kit and Mr HUI Yan Kuen.
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Chairman’s Statement

EFRHRSE



RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the
Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th June
2018. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of HK$1,995,313,000
(2017: HK$1,580,329,000) and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$46,171,000 (2017: HK$34,430,000). Eamnings per share for the year were HKI2.51
cents (2017: HK9.33 cents). The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK2.0 cents (2017: HK2.0 cents) per share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK1.0 cent (2017: HKI.0 cent) per share, the total dividend payment for the
year under review is HK3.0 cents per share (2017: HK3.0 cents).

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy has been stable in the past year. Benefitting from the relatively stable
exchange rate of the Renminbi, the rising global oil price and the proven strategies to
enhance product quality and expand its customer base, both selling price and quantity of
the Group's products improved and turnover of three major businesses also recorded
growth. For the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group delivered an outstanding
business performance with a total turnover amounting to HK$1,995,313,000 (2017:
HK$1,580,329,000), representing a substantial year-on-year growth of 26.3%.

During the year, the Group's gross profit grew by 16.7% to HK$253,932,000 (2017:
HK$217,524,000). The increase in income from the plastics trading business has changed
the Group's product mix in the year, causing the gross profit margin to drop slightly by one
percentage point to |2.7%. Nevertheless, the notable increase in shipment and product
selling price of the business segment led to a surge of 34.1% in the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company to HK$46,171,000 (2017: profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company: HK$34,430,000). Basic eamings per share were HKI2.51 cents
(2017: basic earmings per share: HK9.33 cents).
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Chairman’s Statement

ERBE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

To reward shareholders for their unwavering support, the Board of Directors
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per share. Together with the
interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per share for the six months ended 3 Ist December 2017,
the total dividend for the year was HK3.0 cents per share.

Among the Group's three major businesses, the plastics trading business has achieved
the strongest performance. With the success of the Group's effort to adjust its sales
strategy, its cooperation with world-renowned fast food restaurant chains has become
progressively more mature. In addition to domestic sales, its products are now exported
to ASEAN countries. As a result, the Group has secured considerably more bulk orders
when compared with last year, driving segmental tumnover to jump by 34.6% year-on-year
to HK$1,431,478,000. The proportion of turover from the plastics trading business also
increased from 67.3% last year to 71.7%. Gross profit margin rose by 0.7 percentage point
and profit before taxation recorded HK$25,694,000 respectively. The Group will continue
to further implement the current cooperation model in order to actively prospect for
other renowned brands and expand its customer base, hoping to promote this mature
operation model to other customers. Besides, the Group has paid close attention to
the raw material supply of new energy electric vehicles and the fact that the market is
looking for low petroleum consumption and low emission features in traditional internal
combustion engine-powered automobiles. As the market prefers to use turbo engines
with smaller capacity and shows a stronger demand for high heat-resistant and heat-
insulating function plastic materials, the Group will strive to capture the opportunities
arising from related market growth. Apart from serving traditional home appliance
producers, the Group also provides necessary raw materials to a new generation of
Internet of Things (“loT") household product developers in order to create new income

sources.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

As for the engineering plastic business targeting the Hong Kong local market and the
export market in Europe, the Group has implemented measures to broaden income
sources and reduce expenditure and invest more resources in Research and Development
(“R&D"). Shipments in this business segment continued to increase, resulting in a 20.1%
rise in turnover to HK$238,672,000. Gross profit margin maintained stable and profit
before taxation surged 40.7%. Considerable orders were received as the Group's
environmentally-friendly foldable household items and high-end brands for infant toys have
been well-received by branded customers. The Group's Shanghai and Dongguan branches
reported the most satisfactory performance. Turmover from these two branches climbed
28.6% year-on-year and profit before taxation also soared 62.9%. With the completion
of optimisation of the production facilities and commencement of operation, the Group's
production capacity and product quality have been enhanced as it further realises its

strengths in production technologies and R&D and bolsters its overall profitability.

Regarding the colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resin business segment,
tumnover has increased by 2.9% to HK$324,730,000. Due to the keen competition in the
food packaging market and the impact from the consumer electronic product cycle, gross
profit margin was 1.6 percentage points lower than last year. The Group also recorded
a one-off additional expense item generated from the relocation of plants in Xiamen,
the absence of the reversal of the impairment of deposit for acquisition of properties
recorded last year and the rising of labour, administration and logistics costs during the
year, meant that profit before taxation declined by 69.4%. To enhance the overall business
performance and mitigate potentially adverse effects arising from the extemal economic
environment, the Group has strategically strengthened its cooperation with renowned
automobile brands in China in order to capture a larger market share there. In addition,
Shanghai branch will continue to manufacture automobile-related products while Xiamen
branch will continue manufacture high quality sanitary products and provide value-added
services. With the aim of exploring more business prospects in China, the Group hopes

to open up new income sources and find new customers.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
PROSPECTS

The stable supply in the oil market and moderate rises in the price of oil are expected to
have a positive impact on boosting the demand for and price of industrial raw materials.
However, the trade friction between China and the United States (“US") will lead to
increasing risks in the Chinese economy, and the fluctuation of Renminbi exchange rate
and the production costs in China will exert additional pressure on companies. Thus,
the management remains cautious about the future development of the Group's overall

business.

With respect to business development, the Group will continue to execute its set
development direction — broadening its customer base, creating new income sources, and
exploring more potential markets and regions. Apart from continuously manufacturing
traditional home appliances and maintaining stable relationships with major toy
manufacturers, the Group will directly negotiate with end-customers and will allocate
more resources in prospecting for more end-customers such as sanitary products and
construction materials companies in order to support China's policy of boosting the
domestic sales market. Furthermore, to create new income sources, the Group plans
to work with new technical institutions to jointly invest in R&D resources in developing
high value-added products with high margins. Meanwhile, the Group is actively preparing
for expanding into the Greater Bay Area market in order to seize the development
opportunities in different markets through domestic and overseas business development,

thereby generating long-term stable income and enhancing its overall profit performance.

As for cost control, the Group will continue implementing strict cost control measures.
While lowering administrative and distribution expenses and borrowing costs, the Group
will also promote electronic administration processes in full strength. This initiative not
only will help streamline the many and complicated workflows, but also will improve the

overall administration in tum achieving greater operational efficiency.

The Group will engage in executing sound and pragmatic business strategies as it has
previously done in a bid to achieve long-term stable growth and bring long-term promising

returns to its shareholders.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and
banking facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2018 the Group
has available aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$573,071,000, of which
approximately HK$470,311,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate
guarantees issued by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties and restricted bank deposits in The People's Republic
of China and Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes [6, 17, 18 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements). The Group's cash and bank balances as at 30th
June 2018 amounted to approximately HK$117,716,000 The Group's gearing ratio
as at 30th June 2018 was approximately 73.7%, based on the total bank borrowings
of approximately HK$375,529,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately
HK$509,215,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and contingent liabilities, and the Company's
contingent liabilities are disclosed in Notes 32, 37 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated

financial statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its exchange

risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.

At 30th June 2018, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward
contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its

operations as follows:
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2018, the Group had approximately 716 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual employees
and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is geared to the
profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an incentive to motivate
its employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides
social or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be)

to its employees depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

|, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my fellow
directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group will, as
always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive for its long-term development
and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more promising results in

the coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2018
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 30th June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's performance for the
year ended 30th June 2018 as well as prospects of the Group's business are provided in

the "Chairman’s Statement” on pages 8 to 14 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of the Group,
some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to external environment.

Major risks and uncertainties are summarised as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in The People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and

Hong Kong, which is closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of the PRC, the Group
is continuing to expand the overseas markets. The Group continues to take a
cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and recognizes the need to

sustain sales momentum.
(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade debtors
is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk

associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
PARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the financial

year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement the
financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 8 to 14 and 57 to 174, respectively, of this
Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE AND COMPLIANCE WITH
RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully committed to
making a difference for its staff, the community and the common good. During the year
there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to treasure the staff, community

and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in Hong
Kong and the PRC while the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and is listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). During the year ended
30th June 2018 and up to the date of this Directors' Report, the Group has complied with

all relevant laws and regulations in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH ITS KEY STAKEHOLDERS INCLUDING EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group,
the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and development for

employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers' needs and continues to
contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic materials which
suit the customers' requirements, which include their social responsibility and

sustainability.
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Report of the Directors
EFERE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of suppliers
and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good quality and ethics.
The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of them to comply with our

social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement

on page 49.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per ordinary share,

totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid on 9th April 2018.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary
share, totalling HK$7,384,000.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in Notes 28 and 39 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

Note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2018, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, comprising
the contributed surplus and retained earings, amounted to approximately HK$70,601,000
(2017: HK$71,407,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the company's
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws and there
was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 175.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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EFEHRE
SHARE OPTIONS

On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme") and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5th

December 2002. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their

discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options to subscribe for the shares

of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options to

eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an offer to take up Share
Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix Il of the circular issued by the
Company on |8th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share Option may be granted
under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme as at the date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which
is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any other option
schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any |2-month

period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

()

)

i)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors (the
“Board") may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not
expire more than |0 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a period
of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$ ! is payable on

acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option, (i) the average price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer for the
grant of a Share Option or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever is the

greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between 22nd
November 2012 and 2Ist November 2022 to offer the grant of an option to any
qualifying participants.

No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2018 are set out in Note

35 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming

Mr HUI Yan Kuen

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung *

Mr CHING Yu Lung *

w Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, Mr NG Chi Ming and Mr HO Wai
Chi, Paul retire by rotation in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws. Dr
WONG Chi Ying, Anthony has notified the Board that he would not offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, and accordingly, will retire as
an Executive Director in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws at the
conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. Save for Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, the other three retiring Directors, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Mr NG Chi Ming and
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul are eligible and offer themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A4.3 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), separate
resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company to approve the further
appointment of Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul as Independent Non-executive Director at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-
term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels,
the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-
term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an equity component that
is designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.
The remuneration package comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary

bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.

The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director is entitled
under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities which he or she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution or discharge of his or her duties. To the extent
permitted by such Ordinance, the Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought against

directors of companies in the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2018, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2018

ESRBEETHRAERARAF
HEMEEEEREAK G2
BER/I%E

RZE-N\FRA=1TH ARAIZEERK
RITRA BRAR RS AL REERE (&R
FEELARGROI(TEFHEED ) FEXVE)R
MARR Rz EEREBCRBREERHE
fEBIF 326 FE A2l - RERD R
ErcEDERAR  ZRBELTRAZ LA
RIESETEFZHBRETA(RETAE
AAREREZTRRENT :

REZE-NEXNF=FHEXRTEKREEO.10
BTZEER

Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BRRE A RARNHE
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors BEERS B A% EEER REEE HibEz
Mr HUI Sai Chung Hausiyiks Long positions 578 16003600 202,721,500 (a) - -
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong ArE A Long positions {F & 19,850400 198,803,500 (b) = —
Mr HUI Yan Kuen AR AE Long positions &F & — 202,721,500 (c) . —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBXL Long positions #F & 1,423,000 - = G)

24 | AnnualReport & [ % % 2017/2018



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a company in
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (Note (d)). In addition, 6,000,000 of
these shares are held by Ever Win directly.

50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai Chung.
Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable
preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively.
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EERBETRAEREADAAH
HEMHEBLIERARES 2
BER/ KR H)

P E -

@  FZERMTZ 1967215008 T5E Good Benefit
Limited ([ Good Benefit]) # 7 ° Ever Win
Limited ([Ever Win1)¥58 Good Benefit B2 2
W+ A2 — S (M (d) o Boh - ZERD
R Z 6,000,000 B B2 B Ever Win ELEE15 A ©

Ever Win &R E | 117tz L@ 50,001 A%
Rt ERE - FEBEAERERBS S
FIBEH Ever Win A SR EE B 50 B8 08

FBRIA 33957 AR5 BR ©
(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow Company b)) ZFRMH 21967215000 T3 B Good
Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (Note (d)). In addition 2,082,000 of these shares are Benefit¥¥ A ° Evergrow Company Limited
held by Evergrow directly. ([Evergrow])# 78 Good Benefit B9 2+ H
Boga(Eo) i 2EROHZ
2,082,000 %1 A Evergrow B A ©
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong. Evergrow & B E {& | 1 7T 2 & # A% 17 50,000
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of BReFELEERE TEAXELESHEE
no par value in Evergrow. Evergrow AR (ENF] X34 A] BB 0B 5T AR 7
30823/ °
(© 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited ("Good Benefit"), a company in (© ZERMFZ196721,5008%T968 Good Benefit
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (d)). In addition, 6,000,000 of Limited ([ Good Benefit]) #5 & © Ever Win
these shares are held by Ever Win directly. 333 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Limited ([ Ever Win )% Good Benefit B4 Z
Win are held by Mr HUI Yan Kuen. M+RE—EE(FE) o ZERO
*h 22 6,000,000 % (& {7 1 Ever Win B FF B °
Ever Win @R E | 17T 2 EBA {0 333 B el
AFANERAERE
(d)  The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held (d) EZGood Benefit(RZZE—NFRA=T
196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2018, are as follows: BRBALDE 196721 500 REH)BAZ B
BT
Number Percentage
of shares of holding
Name of Directors EEpsg R #E ERESL
Mr HUI Sai Chung FritiaL & 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong R 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEREZT 80 0.8%
Others Hith 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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ESERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

As at 30th June 2018, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred
shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Matenials Limited, which are subject to an option granted

to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred

EERRETHRAERARAFDR
HEMBEBIBEREARESZ
ERER/SREE)

NZE-N\FRA=TH TIEZHARA
ERRHERRAAERERETR M #s -
M % A Al ¥ 2 & T Ngai Hing (Intematlonal)

shares. Company Limited AJ 8 & il S 1% RIERT
bl
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
REERERETROEA
Personal Other
interests interests
Name of Directors EERA BARER Hthfe s
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudbes 200,000 50,000(i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B EE 200,000 50,000(ii)
Notes: BfsE -

(i) These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of the
Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at 30th June
2018, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,

(@)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b)  none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the

Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2018, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholders' interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company's
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief executives as disclosed

above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major suppliers are

as follows:
The largest supplier 29%
Five largest suppliers combined 73%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers is less
than 30% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2018 and therefore no

additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

Report of the Directors
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BEERRETHRAERAATDR
HEMBEBZIEREARESZ
ERR/SREE)
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(@) RAFEEFAERA KAQ6 - HER
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Az BEARAEFARSTHA
BAREBEARAREMEMEARE
ZBIRESMES - &

b) BEZ HZRIBRABE  HEGHTN
FATZ FRBEER TARBEARRAF
RinKES 2 R - KBTI FHRER -

FRRRRADARA 2 EHER KR

BREXFABEEARES 2RI RIEALDAF
REFHEROEBHREXVBMEFELEE
BRREMABT - ARAREREEMALR
“E-N\FERA=TREBARRCEITRA
BAZARA LEERIRE ZBA -

BEEAH
FATRITVSFEEAEBARAEB L2
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RAEER 29%
hERAREREG L 73%

AEBAARPREE-Z—/\FRA=1H
LFEEREZEHERBO L DR AEBAH
ERANZ=T  WRABINEZFIRR
PZEF

Annual Report % [ # & 2017 /2018 | 27



Report of the Directors
EFERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (Continued)
None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the

major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors and the
Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of intemal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr HO
Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the

annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2018 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and,

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management throughout the
growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises on maintaining and

carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended 30th June 2018, except for

the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report, the board
(the “Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company has not appointed any
individual to be the chief executive. The roles of the chief executive have been performed
collectively by all the executive Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The
Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when it thinks

appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors confirmed they have

complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the year.

EEERRE

EEERER
ARRBNRIRHEREAERREF &
BARRENEBT ZFRAREFARRE
BRERLR - ARRZELRFLHTER
RREBEMNRHERERAZRLRE
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BTATE)ZBERIR  TEA— AR
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2])/ EFQ(EFS ) HAREEMALE
ETHARE - TRAHZBERARENRE
UTES(BRIF)AREL EXERR
ZEFBEMUHERTRABENITESHRFR
B MU ERATARAZBRRRE - 817
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EEELGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’

attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition

of executive and non-executive Directors. Save as disclosed in the biographies of the

Directors on pages 4 to 5 to the annual report, there is no financial, business, family

or other material/relevant relationship between Board members. The Board conducts

meetings on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During

Exg
EERMR  EESEHAREZLELY

ARANEREABHEORONESR - ME
PRTESREFRTESNESTREHE -
BRERFREAIZSENESEEMBEEIN
EZENBCHLBEETAHNE BE  REX
HtEX/HEIHE EFEUTHRAEE

the year, the Board held a total of three regular board meetings, nine ad-hoc board BRERUGHNERVARTEE - RER
meetings and one general meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the EXeQ AR AEHESZERE LK
Directors are set out below: AEEEERER—AREAG - EZGHKK
EELEHARBOT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings  Attendance %8 Attendance BR3E  Attendance
Attendants R E plgrs HEXE SFRE LHEXE ASRE HEXE
Executive Directors: HITEE .
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) THRELE (FE) 3 3 9 9
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR
(Deputy Chairman and (BI1EE#
Managing Director) EFEgr) 3 3 9 9
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEEL
(Vice Chairman) (BIEfE) 3 3 9 9 | |
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEELL 3 3 9 9 | |
Mr NG Chi Ming RERLE 3 3 9 9 | |
Mr HUI Yan Kuen G it 3 3 9 9 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: ~ BUHHTEE :
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul MESTE 3 3 9 0 | |
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BikELE 3 3 9 0 | |
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmErsE 3 3 9 0 | |
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’

attendance (Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the Board
and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or financial
management expertise. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 5
to the annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive Directors
and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its approval. The principal

functions of the Board are:

® 1o establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and set

the objectives of the management;

®  to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

®  to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

®  to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.
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EEEGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30th June 2018, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2018, the members
of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2018, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made are prudent and

reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG

Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 46 to 48.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr NG Chi Ming, Mr HUI Yan Kuen, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul,
Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial to the Company in their
respective fields, including attending seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered
by professional bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

50 as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all Directors for
their continuous professional development. During the year ended 30th June 2018 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged to provide the Directors

with briefing on the amendments to the Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities of the
Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been complied with the

CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and

attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

EEERRE

REZEE

AARMRAZBE(REZEEIR_F
—ZHEZAZTRBREBRARE O BES
BN - REZESHMERBUFNTERR
—EBHTERANK - AARIEELEAT

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HESERE BRE HE=E
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEEEE(FEELE) 212 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUELEE 22 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngELE 22 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung Tt EREE 22 100%
Role and Function HRRBE
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and REZECEETHRNETSNEE  HE
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular FEE(BRERMN  ABERLER) W IR
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes; EREFMEZERLER  BAAGHEER

identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee would review the Board's composition from time to time where Board
diversity would be considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 30th June 2018 to review the structure, size and composition (including the

skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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EEEGRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
September 2017 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists
of all independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of

the Audit Committee are as follows:

ERZEES

F )
ARRRBBRFTZBEMEE 2 ARARNR
RZEG([BRZEG ) L BEGEEDRN =T
—tFNAZT BEH - ERZEEHRE
BUFATESEN - BRZEBGZHEM R
EMCEEINT -

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESERE BRY HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEEEE(FEELE) 3/3 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRkEELE 313 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngEL & 313 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility of
financial reporting, risk management and intemal control procedures as well as to maintain

an appropriate relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations
set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given below are the main duties of the

Audit Committee:

(@)  to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and

scope of the audit;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
Role and Function (Continued)
() to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the

Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial

reporting; and

(d)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters
the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where

necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2018, the Audit Committee met three times, in particular,

to review and discuss the followings:

the auditing and financial reporting matters;

®  the appointment of external auditor;

the establishment of internal control system; and
° the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all

senior staff of the Group.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee") in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors and
an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

FMEES

AR ARIBRE X P 2 $TE PR TE < AR B B0

HEEe((FMEEE ) CBERECR-F
— =R+ RBEH - FMEEGHR=M
BUFRTEER —NRTEEAK - HME
Be @k kb FELsEmT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESBERY BN HE=R
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) WEELE(ZEELE) 22 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUKEEEE 22 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmELE 22 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung sl 22 100%

Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and senior
management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance
and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee held two meetings during the year ended 30th June 2018 to review the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration packages of the

Directors and the senior management of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

EEERRE

REMHE

RNER - ARRIZEEEZRIKE SR E
PiRft 2 B2 MOFBERRE - MARBIFZSE
BRBENREN < ABERNOT :

HK$

BT

Audit services for the Group RARBIRMZEZRE 1,983,000
Non-audit services including: BRI BE

— review of interim results - EHPHEE 268,000

— taxation services for the Group - RAEERHZHIERY 349,000

— agreed upon procedures on the Group's annual results announcement ~AEERFEEN I ETRER 23,000

Total i 2,623,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Composition

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate Governance
Committee) was established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of the

Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

AREMERERREE([RXERZER])
R-E-—FZA-tRARETARENR
BEEKYL - CXERZEGMEBEUIFY
TESAN - RARREFELENT -

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESRRE BRY HE=E
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEEEE(FERLE) 212 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUEEEE 22 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung ks 22 100%

Role and Function

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2018 to review the corporate governance
policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on corporate governance

to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and reviewing their effectiveness. The Group has formulated and
adopted a risk management process which includes risk identification, risk evaluation, risk
mitigation, risk monitoring and reporting. At least on an annual basis, the management of
the Company identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the Group's
objectives, and assesses and prioritises the identified risks according to a set of standard
criteria. Risk mitigation plans are then established for those risks considered to be

significant, which include regular reporting to the Audit Committee and the Board.

The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive policies,
standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls for
safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve
a satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and
errors. In addition, the Group has established internal control protocols and control self-
assessment process on major operations. Assessment results are submitted to the Board

for ongoing monitoring purpose.

For the purpose of enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to assist the Board and the Audit
Committee in ongoing monitoring and in performing the internal audit functions for the
Group. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of intemal controls are identified
and recommendations are proposed for improvement. Significant internal control
deficiencies are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board on a timely basis to

ensure prompt remediation actions are taken.

The Board has reviewed and considered the Group's risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate during the year. The risk management and
internal control systems of the Group are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not

absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr Chan possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing the functions of a company
secretary. Mr Chan is the secretary of the Board and various Board committees including
audit committee, remuneration committee, Corporate Governance Committee and

nomination committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2018, Mr Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and
enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the Board through the following channels to

the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

I by mail to the Company's head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Center,
10 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number +852 2693 1663;
3. byfaxat fax number +852 2694 0877; or
4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. Constantly being
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the

Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high

level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.
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2. BEZEEFRIE+852 2693 1663
3. BEEZEES+8522694 0877 5 8
4. EHZ info@nhh.com.hk °
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT (Continued)

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in
all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board attends the
Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website

shortly after the meetings.

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of

Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice™) at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 10 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by the Shareholder concemed including
the information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her
personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice
as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the general

meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply with the code

provision E.1.4 of the CG Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB AR &

i
pwc Bk E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B ZEERE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED FHRATERDARRK
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (REFRZEAMA B FRAA])
OPINION R

What we have audited EPEZHAE

The consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the RETERRAFA(ATEE ERA ) RENE
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 49 to |74, which AEATHBIESE]IENE9Z 174E

comprise: WS BRE  EREE:

+  the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2018; o RZZE-NEAAZTHWEZLEESR
(EE

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended; O BEZAULFENGERER

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended; Q BEZAILLFENGEARER

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, s HEZAUFENGEEZEHR

+  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and o HEZAULFEMNGERERER K

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of G REMBERANE  ETEEEEgH

significant accounting policies. BRBZ -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30th June 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs™)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter identified in our audit is valuation of investment properties.

Key Audit Matter

I %S EMER &

BRETEEM)
AMERFPAGNAREA FEARENE
fhME -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of investment properties
Refer to Notes 2.7, 4(c), 7 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group's investment properties were carried at HK$141,380,000 as at
30th June 2018 with a revaluation gain of HK$12,697,000 recorded in the

consolidated income statement for the year ended 30th June 2018.

The fair values of the investment properties held by the Group were derived
using the income capitalisation method. Independent professional valuer was
engaged by management to assist in estimating the values of the investment
properties. Due to the unique nature of each investment property, the
assumptions applied in the valuations were determined having regard to
each property's characteristics. These valuations are dependent on certain
key assumptions that require significant management judgement, such as
capitalisation rates including outgoings, passing rentals of the current leases and

comparable market transactions.

BRETEE

In assessing the appropriateness of management's valuations of

investment properties, we performed the following procedures:

0 We obtained and read the valuation reports prepared by
the independent professional valuer. We evaluated the
independent professional valuer's competence, capabilities

and objectivity.

. We involved our in-house valuation experts in assessing
the valuation methodology used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions adopted such as capitalisation
rates including outgoings by comparing them to publicly
available data and their knowledge of the property
industry.

ERANET AR ERRETEE
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BRFE R BHENELT  4c) 7R 18

EEEREMEN T NEANA=THH AL EEABEE 141,380,000
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BB 12,697,000 T ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

BRETEEM)

Key Audit Matter (Continued) How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Continued)

We focused on the evaluation of management's assessment on the valuations *
of the Group's investment properties because this assessment involved
management's significant judgement and estimates and the carrying values of

these investment properties are financially significant to the Group.

We have also checked the passing rentals of the current
leases adopted by the independent professional valuer by
comparing them to latest lease agreements of the Group

as at 30th June 2018.

We assessed the reasonableness of the fair value of the
investment properties valued by independent professional
valuer by comparing against the market transactions based

on our own market research.

We found the valuation methodology and key assumptions used

by management were supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION
The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is
to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those in charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or

the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors” use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events

or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concem.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner

that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit

opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
I %S EM R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th September 2018
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 #Z —F— \FENA=1HIFE

2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P &E TER TERT
Revenue Wz 5 1,995,313 1,580,329
Cost of sales SHERAR 9 (1,741,381)  (1,362,805)
Gross profit EM 253,932 217,524
Rental income HE WA 6 6,603 6,503
Other gains, net HAth ez — F R 7 16,101 17,126
Distribution costs 2 AR 9 (80,493) (76,572)
Administrative expenses TBX 9 (115,706) (105/416)
Operating profit R 80,437 59,165
Finance income MRS 553 1,550
Finance costs Bi5E R (14,561) (11,140)
Finance costs, net BER -8 10 (14,008) (9,590)
Profit before income tax BR A B A 66,429 49,575
Income tax expense BES I (16,307) (12,790)
Profit for the year RE 5 A 50,122 36,785
Attributable to: AT AL -
Equity holders of the Company NAIIRER 46,171 34,430
Non-controlling interests FEFEHIER 3,951 2,355
50,122 36,785
Earnings per share for profit attributable AREE D AIRR B A
to equity holders of the Company during Z G5 7
the year (expressed in HK cent per share) (ARG
— Basic and diluted —EAREE 13 1251 9.33
The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the R & W s 2% B R B P B 5 — OF B E -

accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHlmER

For the year ended 30th June 2018 BtZ = F—/\ENA=1THIFFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Profit for the year AE T 50,122 36,785
Other comprehensive loss: HirkraBE -
ttem that will not be reclassified subsequentlyto income statement: HE T @ EH D EEWGEE 2 EE
Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment ME - BB RREERE
on transfer to investment properties REME 2 &tz — 363
ttems that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement: ~ BB AKEF D EEWH R 2 EE
Currency translation differences BHERH 14,684 (4,226)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year A% H\ﬁﬂﬂ?éqﬂlﬁ/ (% Té) 77777777777 . (3:863)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEFENGHERE 64,806 32922
Total comprehensive income attributable to: GelmRERER
— Equity holders of the Company —RAIRRE 60,679 30,607
— Non-controlling interests —JEHE bl 4,127 2315
64,806 32922

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in bitira & Ot R e ELRE MY B — O BE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
SEEERER

As at 30th June 2018 R—FE—NENA=+H

2018 2017
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
P aE TEr TER
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBDEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE KRR 16 129,143 17,412
Leasehold land and land use rights ME i R L b A 17 18,399 18,531
Investment properties REME 18 141,380 127,801
Intangible assets BV EE 19 — .~
Available-for-sale financial asset A ENBEE 20 2,000 2,000
Deferred income tax assets BRERIEE E 30 7,497 5,655
Deposits and prepayments for property, mE - BERRBEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs BNFEkES 3,635 4929
302,054 276,328
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 22 290,158 255,767
Trade and bills receivables BIRKARERER 23 284,292 264,882
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits H WG - BT kRe 19,466 26,599
Income tax recoverable A[ B3R 110 501
Restricted bank deposits ZBR &I RITER 25 35,799 22,989
Cash and bank balances B RRITHEER 25 117,716 105,947
747,541 676,685
Total assets BEE 1,049,595 953013
EQUITY 1
Capital and reserves attributable to NS EY e s
the Company's equity holders
Share capital M 27 36,920 36920
Share premium R (B 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hfth A 28 57,948 43960
Retained earnings REEN 28 351,881 316,786
509,215 460,132
Non-controlling interests IR IR 24,826 23,065
Total equity et 534,041 483,197
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HERERR/RE

As at 30th June 2018 R—ZF—1ENA=+H

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pl Tz THET
LIABILITIES Afg
Non-current liabilities FRBRIR
Deferred income tax liabilities ERERIBAE 30 6,917 6,863
Provision for reinstatement costs BIE R AR 884 =
7,801 6,863
Current liabilities REAR
Trade and bills payables BORNRRENEZE 26 86,059 88513
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HEMAR  EHGIe RERER 38,213 35,127
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 375,529 331,830
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMITA 24 — 29
Income tax payable i ANEAE 7,952 7,454
507,753 462,953
Total liabilities BEE 515,554 469,816
Total equity and liabilities pEzRaRE 1,049,595 953013
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the it BE A BRE RN —0150E -

accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 49 to 174 were approved by the Board of Directors on

27th September 2018 and were signed on its behalf

HUI Sai Chung
FritEE

Chairman

T
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Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEEBEIR

For the year ended 30th June 2018 #Z2 = F—/\E~NA =+ HILFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRREEDH
Other reserves
Elofile
Available-
for-sale
financial  Exchange
asset reserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capitdl ~ Revalation ~ WHE reserve  Retaned  controling
capital premium reserve resene  HIHEE EX eamings interests Total
e BEEE  AAHE  BRES B RBRE  REEN FEER g
HK$000 HKS000  HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn  TEn
At lst]uly 2016 RZE-~EtA-A 36920 62466 615 7590 1310 40388 286048 20384 45721
Comprehensive income FalE
Profit for the year RERT - - = = = = 34430 1355 36785
Other comprehensive loss Httira g
Currency tranglation differences EXEE o - - = - (4186) - (40) (4226)
Revaluation gain of property, plant and 0% BRRREEEE
equipment on transfer o REMZ 2 Bt
investment properties — ~ - 363 - - - - 363
Total comprehensive income GalEEE = = = 33 = (416) 34430 2315 292
Transactions with owners HEELRH
Acquiston of nterest in a subsiciary without ~ FAEEHIEN KB LR
change of control (Note 36) R (3 36) - — 210 = = = = 2018 0
2016/17 interim dividend paid HZZ-7/25t5E
hRE = = = = = = (369) = (3692)
Dividends paid o non-controling nterests IRTEEHRERE RS = - -~ - — . - (1752) (1752)
Total transactons vith owners HEERHLE = = (.120) = = = (369) 366 (5446)
At 30th June 2017 RZE-t57A=TH 36920 62466 (1,505) 7953 1310 36,202 316,786 065 483197
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEZBIR

For the year ended 30th June 2018 #2 = F—/\E~NA =1+ HILFZ

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

DRRREAB

Other reserves

Afbféfe

Available-
for-sale

financial Exchange

assetreserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capitl ~ Revalwation  WHELE reserve Retained  controlling
capital premium reserve reeve  HHEE EX earnings interests Total

Bx  BFEE E4EE  ERERRE BE  REGE REEN Fe6EE #E
HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKSO0  HKS000  HKSO00  HK$000
Tn  TEn  TER  TEr  fEn  TEn  TEr  TEn  TER

At IstJuly 2017 RZZ-+E+A-H 36,920 62,466 (1,505) 7953 1310 36,02 316,786 23,065 483,197
Comprehensive income FalE
Profitfor the year REEF - - - - - = 471 3951 50,122
Other comprehensive income L e
Currency transiation differences ERES = = = = = 14508 = 176 4684
Total comprehensive income FAlEeE - - — — — 14508 46,171 4127 64,806
Transactions with owners HiEELRH
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary % 2is-Salil
without change of control (Note 36) R (3 36) - - (520) - - - - 520 -
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) i E-HBAR (M) - - - - - - - 208 208
2016/17 fnal dividend paid IHZE-n/25—tEE
RERE - - - = = = (7384 = (7384
2017/18 interim diidend paid IHZE-t/ZF-NER
hHERE = = = = = = (369 = (3692)
Dividends paid tonon-controling nterests X1 PHEAHER 2 RE - - - - = = = (3,094 (3,094
Total transactions with owners HFEI XG4T - - (520) - - - (1,076) (2366) (13962)
At 30th june 2018 R=E-\FrA=TH 36,920 62,466 (2025 7953 1310 50710 351,881 24826 53404l
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with iR e R as B R B SRR PR —(FBA5E -

the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

v, \éiﬂﬁiﬂtﬁﬁ X

For the year ended 30th June 2018 #Z2 = F—/\E~NA =+ HILFZ

2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P E TEn TAT
Cash flows from operating activities REEXBZRER
Cash generated from operations REXGHEEZHR S 31(a) 48,330 30,828
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEFENER (2,658) (1,033)
The People's Republic of China ERPEARKNE
(the “PRC") income tax paid (T B A St (14,878) (10479)
Interest received B S 469 582
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMEEZFRE 31,263 19,898
Cash flows from investing activities REEBZRER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BEL&R (21,227) (13278)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWME - BERE
plant and equipment e 31(b) 144 100
Prepayments for property, plant and NE - BERkREBREE
equipment and renovation costs SEAREA (3,396) (4.929)
Net proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, HE—MEBARMEHFE—
net of cash and cash equivalents included IRHERBLRZ
in the subsidiary disposed of ReRkHeEHE 8 (33) =
Purchase of investment properties BEREME - (4.014)
Restricted bank deposits RBREHRITER (11,905) —
Net cash used in investing activities REXBAERZERS (36,417) (22,121)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
u'l\éiﬁﬁiﬁg X
For the year ended 30th June 2018 #2 = F—/\E~NA =1+ HILFZ

2018 2017

Note HK$°000 HK$'000

BiEE THERT FET

Cash flows from financing activities REXB HER

Proceeds from bank loans MBRITER 409,280 502,001
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (440,228) (501,792)
Increase in trust receipt loans EREUIRE FRIZ N 71,599 52,190
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XTI RIS 2 RS (3,094) (1,752)
Dividends paid XRE (11,076) (3,692)
Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary e )=INCi £ = )
Interest paid on bank borrowings EMRITEENS (13,086) (1'1,140)
Net cash generated from financing activities REXBRELEZFRE 13,395 35,813
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRkBReBHEEM 8,241 33,590
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNzRekReEH 31(c) 96,689 63,666
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXREBTE 2,529 (567)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZBEERAEFH 31(c) 107,459 96,689

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the Lz 6B enERE RN —HEE -

accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI |,

Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have

been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th September 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issues by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA™) and requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties, available-for-sale financial asset, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit

or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2 FESTBRHE®

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HHREEE)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires RANEBEBHBRE LN
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management HRFRERETHERESHESE -
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting ENEEEREERAASENS
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or ATEERBRPITREEAE - RS
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated B HETs R E R RS - X
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. B REGE M BRKEEAREMN
fREMEE - EME4TRE
(a)  Effect of adopting new standards, amendments to standards and (a) FRAFER - HERImEN

interpretation HEBZZE

Amendments to Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS™) 12 Income Taxes
HEB S EAFE 12RNEFT FsH

Amendments to HKAS 7
HEB G ERE 7 RME

Statement of Cash Flows
ReRER
Amendment to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

HEBMBRELERSE 125N ER] HthERERRE

BRA A L3RR~ BRI
ER ISR A 3
ERBRARL BEATE -

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments to standards
and interpretation has had no material effect on the Group's result

and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
SFEMBHRFTMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continieq) 2 T EEHEBES)
2.]  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HHEREEE)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards have () WUTAELMELIFRBE

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2017 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRS 9
BANBREERE IR

HKFRS 15
BAMBRELERSE 155

Amendments to HKFRS 2

HEBMBHREERE 2ROEFT

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HEBUBHRELERE 4580

Amendment to HKFRS |
HEAVBWEELE | OB
Amendment to HKAS 28

HEBGERF28RAERT

Amendments to HKAS 40
HBEB ST ERE 40 MEET

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (“HK (IFRIC)") Interpretation 22
EFE(BRMBERERBRRES)RBE DR

E_T—+FELA-BEN
BB A AR Bl |
EREET - AEELER
PR

Financial Instruments
SHIA

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

EEA R

Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions '

AR RERNSINRZH 2 BN E!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts '

HUBRBMBREENE 45 RRER |
BB BREENEIRI BT

First Time Adoption of HKFRS !
BREMERIBHREER

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures '
REBENSEEENRE

Transfers of investment property '

BREMENER

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration !

NER IR,/ FRURHE!
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards have (b)

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2017 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 16
BAMBREERE 165

HK(IFRIC) Interpretation 23
ER(ERMBREREZES)REE R

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HEBMHRELEIF 105K
BRFHERIE 28 RMER]

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2018
a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2019

8 To be determined

TEEHHESE )

21 HREEEE)

AT REAMELIFREE
E_T—tFLA—BEN
IR R B R
ERIMER] - REEL EIE
FHRM : (B)

Leases ?

HE?

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 2

FSHRIE MEE 1L 2

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture 3
REEFRAMEF AL PR BNEELEITIE®

B \F-A-RROHFRABER
: BT NF—HA—BEOFRAMER
: IRHEEE

The Group has commenced, but not yet completed, an assessment
of the impact of the new standards and amendments to standards
on its results of operations and financial position. However, none of
the above new standards and amendments to standards is expected
to have a significant effect on the financial statements, except the

following set out below:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2./

Basis of preparation (Continued)

)

The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2017 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 9: “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification and measurement of financial
assets, financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment
requirements for financial assets. It replaces the guidance in HKAS
39 that relates to the classification and measurement of financial
instruments. HKFRS 9 retains but simplifies the mixed measurement
model and establishes three primary measurement categories
for financial assets: amortised cost, fair value through other

comprehensive income and fair value through profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires
an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a

credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

2.1

)

The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning st
July 2017 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 9: “Financial Instruments” (Continued)

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and expects
that the Group's financial asset that is currently classified as available-
for-sale (“AFS") will satisfy the condition for classification as at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") and hence
there will be no change to the accounting for these assets.

There will be no impact on the Group's accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss
and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The derecognition
rules have been transferred from HKAS 39: Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and have not been changed.

In addition, the expected credit loss model may result in early
provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost. Based
on the historical experience of the Group, the default rates of the
outstanding balances with customers are low. The Directors are of
the view that if the expected credit losses (“ECL") model under
HKFRS 9 were to be applied by the Group, the accumulated amount
of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as at Ist July 2018
would not be significantly different as compared to the accumulated
amount recognised under HKAS 39.

The Group will apply the new rules retrospectively from Ist July 2018,
with the practical expedients permitted under the standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2./

Basis of preparation (Continued)

)

The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2017 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 15: "Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

HKFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue standards: HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS |1 Construction Contracts, and the related
Interpretations on revenue recognition. HKFRS 1[5 establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recognise revenue
and how much revenue to recognise through a 5-step approach:
(1) Identify the contract(s) with customer; (2) Identify separate
performance obligations in a contract; (3) Determine the transaction
price; (4) Allocate transaction price to performance obligations; and
(5) Recognise revenue when performance obligation is satisfied. The
core principle is that a company should recognise revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to the customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects
to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. It moves away
from a revenue recognition model based on an “earnings processes”
to an “asset-liability” approach based on transfer of control. HKFRS
|5 provides specific guidance on capitalisation of contract cost, license
arrangements and principal versus agent commissions. It also includes
a cohesive set of disclosure requirements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from the
entity's contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after |st January 2018 and earlier application
is permitted. The Group does not plan to early adopt HKFRS 5. The
Group assessed the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15 by analysing
the Group's key revenue streams against the 5-step approach and did
not expect the adoption would have a material impact at the Group's

result and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contined) 2~ EESFHRBE (&)
2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HHREEE)
(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards have ) NTRERGEILFREH
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist —tF LA -BEMN

July 2017 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 16 ‘Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification of
lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors and
lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related

interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 will result in almost all leases being recognised on the
balance sheet, as the distinction between operating and finance leases
is removed. Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The
only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases. The accounting

for lessors will not significantly change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for Group's operating
leases. As at the 30th June 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$14,950,000 (Note 32). The
Directors do not expect the adoption of HKFRSs would result in
significant impact on the Group's result but it is expected that certain
portion of these lease commitments will be required to be recognised

in the consolidated balance sheet as lease liabilities.

64 | AnnualReport 4 # & 2017 /2018

BB R AR AT A & 4
EAMER  ARELER
RS (&)

EEHBEHREERZE 65
[HE]

BRMBRERAE 654
A A A S BIRE
EMEHERIIAT @4
AR - BB BREER
F 6 EEENERRE
BEIENE I7THRIEEIR
HERE -

BRMBREERSE 16578
BYETLHEHEREE
BERARR K2HER
BEHENE DS RME -
REZHER - EEZHE
EEAMERE) BEXNH
ST RABWAESD - -
pIovEREBHAMEEER
B HAEANSHRER
TeBEERNE -

LR FEYEAEEK
EHENSHRERE - R=F
—NEXA=1H " £5H
ENABUEM R & G e
14,950,000 7C(HF 332)
EXHE KARBHMBER
EEATEHEBEEER
BEAYE BEFHEIIH
BB ARG BRI A B
BRARPIERTHEAESR
1THER °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)  The following new standards and amendments to standards have

been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2017 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

HKFRS 16: “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is mandatory for financial years commencing on or after Ist
January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt the

standard before its effective date.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)  Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
22 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at

their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,

unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have

been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-

controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contineq 2~ EFESHBREE(#)
22 Consolidation (Continued) 22 HEKHEE)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. It means the amounts previously recognised
in consolidated other comprehensive income are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss or transferred to another category of

equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

2.3 Segment information 2.3
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24 Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “other gains,

net”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in consolidated

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resutting exchange differences are recognised in consolidated

other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in

consolidated profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from

the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.

Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation

on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their

costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

- Leasehold land classified as finance lease Shorter of the remaining

lease term or useful life

- Buildings 2% - 2.5%
- Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired

lease term or 20%

- Machinery and equipment 12.5%
- Fumniture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
- Motor vehicles 20%
- Tools and moulds 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried at
fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer
is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
the investment property are recognised in the income statement as part of
other gains/losses. If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of

reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 42 to 50 years (2017: 42 to 50
years). Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a

straight-line basis over the period of leases.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and buildings,
is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that is not occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties. Land held
under operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction

costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

2.8

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated

profit or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss in “other gains, net".

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated profit

or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property

and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets - Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of

five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the

classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(a)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than |2 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
include “trade and bill receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”,
“restricted bank deposits” and “cash and bank balances” in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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eV BRRM T

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2~ EEEBEBES)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210 ABEEE)

(b)  Available-for-sale financial assets ) FHROEHFEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are AL EMKEERETS
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the ELBERNS Y ELIEEH
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless R ZIEOTETE - K3E
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the REFNMIERE SN T
investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period. ERRET_EANLEE

RE BRYIABFRDE
o

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the WHREETHEECRZAAR

trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the CEAEBARLEZEELZR)

asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs R HRUIEERA A BEERE

Bk
DH

for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial

CERZMBMGEE REBK

assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair BARBENRSKAER - 8L
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss. nEBEEBERLERNIKEESR
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from RRAABERR  MXHKAL
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has PR BRANIIERY - ERRE
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for- WERRERE 2 EMNSEF ks
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are & MASECSERE R
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently 7Rk K e REEE - BEEER
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any RIPHER - AL ERKEE KR

D\/jﬂﬁﬁiﬁhﬁﬁﬁgﬁ@ﬁﬁwﬁﬁ
HRBEAABEIE - EHRER
ROFRR /Lfﬁfﬁﬁ&uﬂ : Eféﬂ

BRA BRI E AR (F1BR E

provision for impairment.

BRI
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified SERAREECEBEFRIEE
as available-for-sale are recognised in consolidated other comprehensive BEFRABEZEHANEME
income. B PR -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continieq) 2 T EEHEBES)
210 MEEE&)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

consolidated profit or loss as gains and losses from investment securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss when the Group's right to receive payment is

established.

If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted investments),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option

pricing models refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets

@

Assets carmed at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be

reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(@)

)

Assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss,

Assets classified as available for sale
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial

assets is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below
its cost is also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in consolidated profit or loss - is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated profit or loss on equity

instruments are not reversed through the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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TESHBRME#)
212 T4£BITA

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.12 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative

ITETIENSENTATAR ﬁ%

contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values. VHZARBERR  AERER
The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends on whether BEEMTE - @uu\ﬁﬁﬁizqﬂlﬁu

the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified
as current if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are

classified as non-current.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit or loss within “other

gains, net’.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

214

2.15

216

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts,
if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within

borrowings in current liabilities.

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and

the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities (including trade and bills payables) are initially measured
at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the definition of
financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs, net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares

or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss over the

period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.

2.18 Borrowing costs

219

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity, respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

@

)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income

tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

)

(©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

QOutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the

temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligations to

pay further contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income with a maximum
of HK$ 1,500 per month, as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the PRC. Contributions are made by the Group
on a monthly basis to those state-sponsored retirement plans based
on a percentage of the relevant income of the relevant employees.
The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited by
those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

)

(©

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liabilities
for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and

matemity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan (the “Share Option Scheme”). The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is
determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
including any market performance conditions; excluding the impact
of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions; and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified performance and service
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income

statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.

Under the terms of the existing Share Option Scheme of the Group,
the Directors may, at their discretion, invite eligible participants to
take up share options to subscribe for the shares of the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. No share
options were granted or exercised during the year. As at 30th June

2018 and 2017, there is no share option outstanding.

(d)  Bonus entitlements
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.

221 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.
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TESHEEME®)
221 BfE(E)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

221 Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.

WERETRUER  BERHE
ERFR 2 ERMLM A B 1E - o
ZRAEMLRERNREE - MER
—BERRZEM—ERE 2ER
LRI BEIENAK - ERER R o

BERABAMN X RRBATERN
FREENRXNRETE &7
ZRRERTMSHEERRENE
BEEEERRAOIME - BERHE
B e B R RE AT B R
%o

222 Operating leases 222 BEHE
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership RENEREHABEZ AR KD
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made HEZ L2 BALHERARREZHE
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are g REBEEMEEL 2 HREN
charged to the consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the bR B HAEE NI E A RE S
period of the lease. REEHANEREEGEERT
XH e
When the Group leases out properties under operating lease, the properties EASENDERELERE L
are included in the balance sheet as investment properties (Note 2.7). M ZENEURENELRESR
Revenue arising from properties for leasing purposes under operating lease ERBRRAMNT27) - HEEHR
is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease period (Note 2.24). ENEMERBENZMENHEE R
MRESE  EHERAER (K
£224)
2.23 Government grants 223 BFFHE

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grants relating to costs
are deferred and recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to

compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or

receivable, and represents amounts receivable for goods supplied, stated

net of discounts, returns and value added taxes. The Group recognises

revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it

is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when

specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities, as described

below. The Group bases its estimates of return on historical results, taking

into consideration the type of customers, the type of transactions and the

specifics of each arrangement.

®

(i)

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Provision of logistic services
Revenue from the provision of logistic services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders for final

dividend and Board of Directors for interim dividend.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(a)  Forejgn exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi
(“RMB") and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency

exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies other than
their own functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign
exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net
foreign exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign
exchange contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June
2018, the Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency
contracts to purchase USD (2017: purchase USD), details of which
have been disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's receivables,
cash and bank balances, trade and bills payables and borrowings
were also denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 23, 25, 26 and 29. Since the HK$ is pegged
to USD, management are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk

exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.

At 30th June 2018, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit (2017:
post-tax profit) for the year would have been HK$291,000 (2017:
HK$99,000) lower/higher (2017: lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of foreign currency-

denominated non-derivative financial assets and liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREESE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEEE)
(b)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk ) HERERLAEENER

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank. The
Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to
its borrowings. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk whereas those carry at fixed rates expose

the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to

the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2018, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
(2017: post-tax profit) for the year would have been HK$730,000
(2017: HK$582,000) higher/lower (2017: higher/lower), mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest income on cash at bank net off with

higher/lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(©

(@

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its
plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The Group
closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to determine

its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, restricted bank deposits, trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank and the restricted bank
deposits are deposited in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong and the PRC, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure
to any financial institution and management does not expect any

losses arising from non-performance by these counterparties.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. Normally

the Group does not require collaterals from trade debtors.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade and other receivables
(including deposits made) based on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the relevant debtors.
The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the Directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in these consolidated financial statements. The
Directors are of the opinion that deposits are made to credit worthy

parties and do not expect non-performance of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2018, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$470,311,000 (2017: HK$351,622,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidiity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions
of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of intemal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and long-term.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3./

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure of the
overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. The
Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and committed
banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to
meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 30th June 2018, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$573,071,000 (2017:
HK$480,851,000) of which HK$470,311,000 (2017: HK$351,622,000)
was being utilised by the Group.

The tables below analyses the Group's financial liabilities and net-
settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are
the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. For the purpose of maturity
analysis, the maturity date of bank borrowings with a repayable on
demand clause is based on agreed schedule repayment set out in
the loan agreements, disregarding the repayment on demand clauses.
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors
do not consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the

scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

e RRMEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREES)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) HEmEREE (&)
(e)  Liquidity risk (Continued) () FTEELEE(E)
Within ~ Between |  Between 2
| year and2years and5 years Total
—FR —-E@MFR MERFA B
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TR TET TER
At 30th June 2018 R=ZZE—-N\EXA=1+H
Trade and bills payables BIRNRRERNER 86,059 — — 86,059
Other payables and accruals HitteN R R BREH 25919 — — 25919
Bank borrowings RITEE 374,898 3,176 — 378,074
Total g 486,876 3,176 — 490,052
Within ~ Between | Between 2
| 'year and?2years and5 years Total
—FR —EMFA WELFRA as
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TR TAT THET
At 30th June 2017 RZE—tFRA=1H
Trade and bills payables BORNRRENZE 88513 — — 88513
Other payables and accruals HitreN R KERER 21,156 = = 21,156
Bank borrowings RITEHE 332924 693 — 333617
Total B 442,593 693 — 443,286
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GAMBRERE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 M¥ERER@E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEEE)
(e)  Liguidity risk (Continued) () NBELERE)
The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial liabilities TRETARENERESE
that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings RENITEESRBRE  BR
based on the remaining period from the balance sheet date to the HEMIHAR  REHRE
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are EBERAZERZIEAKN
the contractual undiscounted cash flows, based on exchange rates FIRERETON - ERA
prevailing at the balance sheet date. RENEE/ARBERNS
RRER  UREREER
ERAERANEXRE
Within Between | Between 2
| year and2years and 5 years Total
—fA —-EZMFR WEIFA nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Ti#RT TR TERT T#T
At 30th June 2018 RZZ—-N\FX A=+H
Currency forward contract EBRBEH
— Outflow — MR 26,985 — — 26,985
— Inflow —-mA (27,125) = = (27,125)
Total g (140) = = (140)
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+tFRA=1H
Currency forward contract EEEHEH
— Outflow —5NR 46,260 26985 — 73245
— Inflow —mA (46,500) (27,125) — (73,625)
Total et (240) (140) = (380)
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e MBI RMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREE@S
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EBAXRBERE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's AEENESEERE - RREAX
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for SEREESE  UARFRED
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal BMBEMESEEE ARENE -
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. R &R RENE R EBAREE
The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in AEEERERRE  URELE
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust RENEHELRE - RTHFR
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to REEREE  AEEAMEGHE
shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings. X FRERORSEE - EITHR
JEFHMORITER -
The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is AEENAEBLXERAER -
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total IR RREBFERIAGE ARG
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, B BRFERBEERETRER
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt. Bekth BERRIER (4R

REEABRMI)MERFE -

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June 2018 RZE-N\ER_F—LFXH
and 2017: =TH AREZEELRNT -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TRT

Total borrowings (Note 29) BEE(HE29) 375,529 331,830
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 25) A Re KR eER (I 25) (117,716) (105947)
Net debt (R 257,813 225,883
Total equity R 534,041 483,197
Total capital LN 791,854 709,080
Gearing ratio BEXRBRELE 33% 2%
There was no material change of the gearing ratio during the year as the AEETERBRBERNERE -
Group closely monitors the overall capital structure. WRAEENERBRL XV RS
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance sheet
at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements by level of

the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and
other receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including
current borrowings, trade and bills payables, other payables and accruals

approximate their fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the

Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level |.
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e MBI RMEE

PEREREE W)
33 AREEGH(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the inputs is not based on observable market data, the

instrument is included in level 3.

There were no transfers of financial assets between level | and level 2 fair

value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2018, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset
and derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial
instruments. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are measured
at fair value are set out in Note 18. As at 30th June 2018, the fair value of
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
by using valuation techniques. The Group performed the valuation of the
available-for-sales financial asset by the use of discounted cash flow model
based on the market conditions existed at balance sheet date and business
forecast provided by management. Specific valuation technique used to value
the derivative financial instruments includes using forward exchange rates
at the balance sheet date to discount back to the present value. The key
unobservable data includes the interbank forward exchange rate and the

volatility of forward exchange rate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AREEG(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year TRETHZE-_Z-/\FRA=T
ended 30th June 2018. BLEEFEIESRIANES -
Available-for- Derivative
sale financial financial

asset instruments

AHRHE & Total
MBEE ¢MIA i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TR

Opening balance & 2,000 (29) 1,971

Settlements B — (1,805) (1,805)
Gains recognised in profit and loss TEiERERNN S — 1,834 1,834
Closing balance HRR R 2,000 — 2,000

Total gains for the year included in profitor ~ FREEMNEBENFE
loss for liabilities held at the end of the year, B BEEBEERMN

under “other gains, net” [E e — F 58 — 1,834 1,834
Changes in unrealised losses for the year ERRRTHEIANEE
included in profit or loss at the REBRBINE

end of the year — — —
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e MBI RMEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AREEG(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year NTRRBZE-ZZ—tE A=T
ended 30th June 2017. ALFENEIEERITANS
xKo
Available- Derivative
for-sale financial
financial asset instruments
A E PTHE Total
A E FRIA k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TAT TRT

Opening balance HAAEER 2,000 (584) 1416
Settlements wE — (1,862) (1,862)
Gains recognised in profit and loss ERRERN R . 2417 2417
Closing balance HAR A 8L 2,000 (29) 1,971

Total gains for the year included in profit or FRBANEENFE
loss for liabilities held at the end of the year, £z @+ BFEERERA

under “other gains, net” [ E o dees — 58 | — 2417 2417
Changes in unrealised losses for the year ERGRTPEIANEE

included in profit or loss at the AERBLNE

end of the year N (29) (29)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34 HBEHBEENER
As at 30th June 2018 and 2017, there were no financial assets or financial RZE-NFR_Z—tFKH
liabilities which were subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting or =B UEANHBEEESTE
similar agreements. BEERH  TATRERZHNE
Tl E AR -
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

@

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from use of these assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.

These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continuead)

©

@

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by an independent professional valuer by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of the passing rentals of the current leases based on the
capitalisation rates including the outgoings. This methodology is based
upon estimates of future results and a set of assumptions as to income and
expenses of the property and future economic conditions. Details of the

judgement and assumptions have been disclosed in Note 18.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables (including deposits
made) based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible.
The identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of the receivables and
impairment is recognised or reversed in the period in which such estimate

has been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(¢

@

Wiite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories
are recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such

estimates have been changed.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION i R oI E R
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET

Revenue Wz

Sales of goods BEES 1994880 1577965
Provision of logistic services R RS 433 2,364
1,995,313 1,580,329

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the business from the
operations nature and the type of products perspective, including the trading of
plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering
plastic products (“Engineering plastics™) and other corporate and business activities,

including the provision of logistic services (“Others”).

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also
be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the CODM is

measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of revenue and operating profit, which is in a manner consistent with that

of the consolidated financial statements.
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e MBI RMEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for

the year ended 30th June 2018 is as follows:

5 WKERIHER @)

BE_Z-N\FRA=TRHLFERH

RERBERREZAZNBREDHE

BT -
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EeE IRBER Hit rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FiEx T FiEx FEx
Turnover e
— Gross revenue — D EHBIHE 1,491,695 327,781 239,759 44 2,059,676
— Inter-segment revenue —HEREEE (60,217) (3,051) (1,087) 8) (64,363)
Revenue from extemal customers  SMERE P U ES 1,431,478 324,730 238,672 433 1,995,313
Operating profit i Al 37,138 12,536 25,258 5,505 80,437
Finance income B b i 95 444 14 — 553
Finance costs MBER (11,539) (1,247) (1,570) (205) (14,561)
Profit before income tax B H A A 25,694 11,733 23,702 5,300 66,429
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER M)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_T-\FRA=THILFERH
the year ended 30th June 2018 is as follows: (Continued) RERERERREZFZIBRENDE

BT - (&)

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% el IRER Htto &

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TERT T

Other information: Hih &R
Additions to non-current assets FERENEEE N
(other than financial instruments  (BR&RT AR

and deferred tax assets) BRETRIEEEN) 827 12,352 11,150 422 24,751
Depreciation of property, ER S

plant and equipment e 877 6,763 8,655 513 16,808
Amortisation of leasehold land HELH Rt

and land use rights fEREzEH 374 195 2 78 679
Provision for impairment of FERE

inventories, net -8 323 2,171 1,005 — 3,499
Provision for impairment of B HRNRE

trade receivables £ — 58 — 1,130 1,188
Fair value gains on derivative fTHEEMIA

financial instruments, net ARBEFERM (1,834) — — — (1,834)
Fair value losses/(gains) on REMELAEE

investment properties BB/ (afl) 171 (238) — (12,630) (12,697)
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e RRMEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WERkoHER#)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as RZZE-NFRA=ZTERHELERER
at 30th June 2018 is as follows: ERRBEZZIREDDERMT ¢
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EGH IRZR Hit BN

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TERT TR TERT TR TR

Segment assets NEEE 450,909 307,647 161,283 129,756 1,049,595
Total assets BEE 1,049,595
Segment liabilities DEEE (89,916) (26,946) (19,257 (3,906) (140,025)
Borrowings =3 (315,947) (23,810) (27,896) (7.876)  (375,529)
Total liabilities mafmE (405,863) (50,756) (47,153) (1,782)  (515554)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WaRkoHER#)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_Z—tF A=THILEFERHE
the year ended 30th June 2017 is as follows: RERRERREZARIREDBE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
25 EGEH < IiR8H Hit A&EHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT FET TET FET TET
Tumover S
— Gross revenue —DEPBHE l,124,448 319,604 199,208 2,39 | 645,656
— Inter-segment revenue —HEREEE (60,760) (3985) (559) 23) (65327)
Revenue from external customers IR P U e 1,063,688 315619 198,649 2,373 1,580,329
Operating profit/(loss) mERR/ (BB) 6,029 39,040 17616 (3.520) 59,165
Finance income Il 817 496 237 = 1,550
Finance costs HHBER (8,556) (1,235) (1012) (337) (11,140)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BEAT(EB),a (1710) 38301 16,841 (3857) 49,575
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e MBI RMEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER M)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE-T—tF A=THLEFERHE
the year ended 30th June 2017 is as follows: (Continued) RERRERREZFZIBRENHE

BT (&)

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
B EEH  IiREN At KEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THL TAT THAT TRT

Other information: HinEH -

Additions to non-current assets FERBEEEM

(other than financial instruments (RemIAR

and deferred tax assets) BRERIEAEN) 1,023 13,600 7334 264 22221
Depreciation of property, I ER S

plant and equipment e 688 5,542 7,849 531 14610
Amortisation of leasehold land ME LRt

and land use rights Rz EE 36! 225 Ey) 78 696
(Reversal of)/provision for FERE(RE),/

impairment of inventories, net 38 (1329) 399 141 (18) (807)
(Reversal of)/provision for B HRMRE

impairment of trade (&), %

receivables, net — %8 (5) 53 = 222 270
Provision for impairment of H i EHFORE

other receivables £ = - — 2566 2566
Reversal of impairment of deposit ~ U(EEWI % 2 &

for acquisition of properties RERERE ~ (8218) — — (8218)
Provision for impairment of mE - BEREE

property, plant and equipment BB - . i 227 227
Fair value gains on derivative fTEEMIA

financial instruments, net AR EBEFERMN 2417) = = = 2417)
Fair value gains on RENMELDAR

investment properties BER (322) (793) e (4,730) (5,845)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as

at 30th June 2017 is as follows:

KR EER ()
RIBE—+tERA=ZTHRELERER
BRREZAZIIBREDBERNT

Engineering
plastics Others Group
TRREH ity NS

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TAT TAT TAL

Segment assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities

Borrowings

5
T

Okt

il

\

159016 120,831 953013

953013
(19,288) (53100 (137.986)
(37,005) (6959)  (331,830)

Total liabilities

[

(56293)  (12269)  (469816)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers from
Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2018 is approximately HK$987,243,000
(2017: HK$703,304,000), and the total of its revenue from external customers
from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$1,008,070,000 (2017:

HK$877,025,000).

At 30th June 2018, the total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately HK$169,796,000
(2017: HK$160,722,000), and the total of these non-current assets located
in other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$122,761,000 (2017:

HK$107,951,000).
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e MBI RMEE

RENTAL INCOME 6 WA
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Rental income HE WA 6,603 6,503

Outgoings in respect of investment properties that generate rental income

amounted to approximately HK$ 1,656,000 (2017: HK$224,000).

OTHER GAINS, NET

MELARSWANRENEZHBHA
TARA 656008 T(ZE—+ 5

22400078 7T ©

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note |8) REMENAR BEYKES (G 18) 12,697 5,845
Fair value gains on forward foreign exchange RIEEERBZINERBEH
contracts held for trading ARBEKES
— Realised -BEER 1,834 1,862
— Unrealised —-KREHR — 555
Reversal of impairment of deposit for acquisition of WEME 2 w2 R ERR (M @)
properties (Note (a)) — 8218
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) HE—HB AR (FEs) 398 e
Govemment grant (Note (b)) BT B (P EE (b)) 1,148 830
Net exchange gains/(losses) SNEW S (B1R)F 8 24 (184)
16,101 17,126

Notes:

PEE

(a) During the year ended 30th June 2007, the Group paid a deposit of RMB7,150,000 ()

(equivalent to approximately HK$8,218,000) for the acquisition of certain properties in

the PRC, in which the deposit paid represented the value of the building portion of the

properties. However, the transaction has not been completed for years as defects in

certain title documents were yet to be rectified despite continuous efforts had been made

to obtain those documents. During the year ended 30th June 2013, the management

concluded that there were significant uncertainties over the recoverability of the deposit as

a result, a full provision was made on the deposit.

REE-ZZ+tFE A=TAHLF
B AEEGNEETARREAM
RmES F ARE 7,150,000 T (ZEL
821800058 70) 2 & « EReREHZ
MEZEENHDS - REETHELS
N BEETEEXHZRENEE
B LR IR - BEREH M
Bl RS FHEEATREMY - BRE
E-T-—EXA-TRLFEERM
et 2 BRI -
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OTHER GAINS, NET (Continuea)
Notes: (Continued)

(@) (Continuea)

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group has obtained the property right

certificate of the foresaid properties. Accordingly, the impairment of the deposit of
RMB7,150,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$8,218,000) was reversed to consolidated

income statement.

b Pursuant to the PRC local government policies, the Group obtained cash of RMB964,000
g p P
(2017: RMB722,000), equivalent to approximately HK$ 1,148,000 (2017: HK$830,000) from

the PRC local government authorities to support the operations in certain PRC regions with

no special conditions attached.

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 30th June 2018, the Group disposed of its entire equity

interest in ILS Logistics Limited (“ILS") at a consideration of HK$ 1. ILS is principally

engaged in the provision of information system management services to group

companies. As a result of the disposal, a gain of approximately HK$398,000 has

been recognised in the consolidated income statement. The effect of the disposal is

summarised as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

Hitrlh st — B4
fizE - (42)

@ (&)
REZEZZ-N\GEAA=TRHLEFE
AEEERBLAMELEIER
# o Bt - AR7,150,000 T(ZELD
8,218,000 % 7T ) 12 & 2 BB B R B
ZERA WK AR

b) BEFPEESDBHEE AEERR
ETHEME 2 EERRREERG
WA R #964000T(ZEH
1148000 T )(ZE -t F AR
722,000 70 (A 47830,000/8 7T ) ) i £&
Az BE ATIRAEE -

HE—HE QAR

RBE_T-N\FAA=THLFE
A ARENIETZRENERBAY
RERRR(EHEAMR]) 2B ERE
& BB BEMAREREEAR
REBRE - A ELEAREERE
SR ER RHER K 3980008 TL 2 A - it
BHENFERENT

Bl

=

N

o>

HK$'000
TET
Carrying amount of asset/(liabilities) disposed of: HELE/(AB)EEE :

Deferred tax assets BRBIREE 19
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkB2ERE 33
Other payables and accruals HihEN R KRERER (758)
Net liabilities disposed HEFEE (606)

Non-controlling interest transferred to the consolidated ~ FEIEHIHEZER ERANER
income statement 208
Net gain on disposal HEWE T8 398
Total consideration to be satisfied by cash of HK$ | BRENRE | BTTX —
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEREKASESE 33
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e MBI RMEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE

9 BMEIATZAX

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFERA(TBEEEKR) 1,646,422 1,283,753
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17)  #H& 1 J2 & # {55 PR 85 (P o 17) 679 696
Auditor's remuneration e e
— Audit services —ZHR% 2,285 2,192
— Non-audit services — IR BR T 542 536
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M - BEREERTE 16,808 14610
Provision for impairment of trade receivables B HRFUREER ,188 270
Provision for impairment of other receivables Hith e OB B X — 2,566
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of inventories, net BEREER/(BRE) —F8 3,499 (807)
Provision for impairment of property, plant and equipment Mm¥ - BERREAEER - 227
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment LEME  BERSEs (Kam),/ BB (108) 123
Employee benefit expenses, including Directors' EERMX L (BREESHE)
emoluments (Note 14) (5T 14) 138,160 126,800
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings THREFREHERS 9,361 7,755
Repairs and maintenance expenses BRERRERE 5,850 3,889
Transportation and packaging expenses B RBERX 30,164 26,601
Travelling and office expenses EREBRERZ 9,323 9,624
Utility expenses KERX 15,215 15,207
Other expenses Hih & F 58,192 50,751
Total cost of sales, distribution costs and HEKA - DHEKIARITR
administrative expenses puk k] 1,937,580 1,544,793
Representing: R&:
Cost of sales HEKA 1,741,381 362,805
Distribution costs DHRA 80,493 76572
Administrative expenses TH i 115,706 105,416
1,937,580 1,544,793
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10 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 10 MEk=ENER

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Finance income: e

— Interest income from bank deposits —RITEFRMBBA 553 582

— Net exchange gains on financing activities —RE X INVERE TR = 968

553 [,550

Finance costs: HMBER:

— Interest on bank borrowings —RITEEZFE (13,086) (11,140)

— Net exchange loss on financing activities —RERBZINEN R FE (1,475) —
(14,561) (11,140)

Finance costs, net MBER- 38 (14,008) (9,590)

[l INCOME TAX EXPENSE I BEXH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on EBNER B EENGETERTER
the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's subsidiaries BERMEFAZ T ABRA(ZE—tF:
established and operate in the PRC has been calculated on the estimated assessable BOZ AR )stERE - DEKIB
profit for the year at the rate of 25% (2017: 25%), other than a subsidiary in DREAEER D BRI REE 2B
Dongguan which was certified as High and New Technology Enterprises is entitled NEIZAEERAEETENEED 2
1o a concessionary tax rate of 15% for three consecutive years from 2018 to 2020. R CE—t+E HaZz-_tRH)Z
This subsidiary is entitled to re-apply for the preferential tax treatment when the REHFE  RAKE-FURRZ M
preferential tax period expires. BRAREREASHRECETAZZ

E-N\FE_E_ZEBFE-FHEHZ
THZBERE - KB AR ATRER
BB EREREL BRI LY -
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FEMBRRME
INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) I BIEX @)
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement FelEReBAXHA
represents:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FAET
Current income tax: AEERA -
Hong Kong profits tax BEANER 2,011 1,606
PRC corporate income tax REIREPTET 16,154 9926
Under-provision in prior years LEERETR 96 155
18,261 [ 1,687
Deferred income tax (Note 30) EEBIIA (PEE30) (1,954) 1,103
16,307 12,790
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical AEERBRBANEN 2 HIEERER
amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows: BEBMNGH 2 HEMFE 2 BRmHE
ZEEWMT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Profit before income tax BREC AR A 66,429 49,575
Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) BRE165%(ZT—+F : 165%)
AR ZBE 10,961 8,180
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC FETABEFE 4,991 5,041
Income not subject to tax EmARD WA (2,577) (3,557)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AAHB 2 1,166 930
Tax losses not recognised AERZ B EE 2,377 3,840
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses EREAERNTBER (697) (1,405)
Under-provision in prior years LFEERETR 96 155
Unrecognised temporary difference ABRERER (10) (394)
16,307 12,790
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12 DIVIDENDS 2 RE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR

Interim, paid, of HK1.0 cent (2017: HK1.0 cent) Bk HAR S B AR E EAR 1.0 784
per ordinary share (ZF—5F : 1.051L) 3,692 3,692

Final, proposed, of HK2.0 cents (2017: HK2.0 cents) BHRARPREFREER 208
per ordinary share (ZZ—+F - 208l) 7,384 7,384
11,076 11,076

Notes:

On 27th February 2017, the Directors declared an interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per
share, totaling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 3Ist December 2016, which was
paid during the year ended 30th June 2017.

On 28th September 2017, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
share, totalling HK$7,384,000 for the year ended 30th June 2017, which was paid during the
year ended 30th June 2018, and has been reflected as an appropriation of retained eamings
for the year ended 30th June 2018.

On 26th February 2018, the Directors declared an interim dividend of HKI.0 cent per
share, totaling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 3Ist December 2017, which was
paid during the year ended 30th June 2018.

On 27th September 2018, the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per
share, totalling HK$7,384,000. This proposed dividend was not reflected as a dividend
payable in these financial statements and will be reflected as an appropriation of retained

earings for the year ending 30th June 2019.
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N B
I3 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 BRER
Basic =%y
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity BRERBHTIZEA RRREG R TIR
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in NERBEITERR 2 MET9EGEE
issue during the year.
2018 2017
Profit attributable to equity holders of NG EY 3y
the Company (HK$'000) (F%T) 46,171 34,430
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREETERR 2 ETHH 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREXRFN (SREM) 1251 933
Diluted #E
Dilutive earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2018 and 2017 equal RZE-NEAA=THARZZ—+LF
basic eamings per share as there was no dilutive potential ordinary share as at the ANAZTH ARAUEAEEEN
years ended 30th June 2018 and 2017. Lk Bt REIZE-T-N\FXA
=tERZE—tFRA=THILHWE
FE - BREFRNESRERELRR
A
14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 14 EERAXL(EREEMNE)
EMOLUMENTY)
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TR
Wages, salaries and other allowances T& - 5o R H 2Rk 133,986 122,928
Pension costs RIS R 4,174 3,872
138,160 126,800
There were no forfeited contributions (2017: Nil) utilised during the year ended REBEEZZ-N\ERA=THLEE "
30th June 2018 to reduce future contributions. As at 30th June 2018, contribution W EEBAEARIRER(ZE—LF
totalling HK$348,000 (2017: HK$342,000) were payable. &) RZE-/\FRA=TH " #Xe
$£348,000/8 L (= F — £ F : 342,000
TO)RMEE A o
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I5 DIRECTORS BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 15 EBEZNRNERZRSEEEAR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS ZH&
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (@) EFHz
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T-\FRA=THILFE
ended 30th June 2018 is set out below: BUEZzMEMT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(FERALIZENRAR)
RURBMXHIELNHE

Other

emoluments

paid or receivable

in respect of

Director’s other

services in

connection with

the management

of the affairs of

the company

or its subsidiary

Salaries, undertaking

other allowances REEALF

and benefits Employer's  HENEAR

inkind  Discretionary contribution to HEBRAE

Bl bonuses Housing ~ pensionscheme ~ RABEZMRE
Fees B2 RfTlE allowance ExY [BGE] Total
Name of Director Espg k3 RENRIE P EBER  BRHefiR Ehme A%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Executive Directors YIES

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FERLE(ER) 1,620 248 = = 18 = 4066
MrHUI Kok Kiwong FEXEE 1,620 248 = = 18 = 406
Dr WONG Chi Ying Arthony ETERT = 262 = = 18 = 2640
Madam LIU Sau Lai BARRL = | 841 = = 18 = 1,859
Mr NG Chi Mg REALE = 1818 = = 18 = 1,836
MrHUI Yan Kuen TAERE — 1,070 117 — 18 — 1,205
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|5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

e MBI RMEE

15 EEZANRNEZRSEEEASR
ZHe#E)
(@) EFEHWE(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as a Director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

fREZ(FERALAAENELF)

U ATE R E LG

Other

emoluments

paid or receivable

in respect of

Director’s other

services in

connection with

the management

of the affairs of

the company

or its subsidiary

Salaries, undertaking

other allowances REBALT

and benefits Employer’s ~ FHKEAR

inkind  Discretionary contribution to HEBRHE

HiH - bonuses Housing ~ pensionscheme S EZ R
Fees Rt BiTHE allowance Exy [BGE] Total
Name of Director ] fis  RENAR WA BERN BiEzftn  ERHHE 45
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TR

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFNGES

MrHO Wai Ch, Paul figskE 250 - - - - - 250
Mr CHAN Dit Lung R 20 = = = = = 20
Mr CHING Yu Lung s 200 = = = = = 200
Total ag 3890 12207 17 - 108 - 16,322
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I5 DIRECTORS BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 15 EBEZNRNERZRSEEEAR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continved) ZME#)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEWE(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T—tF A=THILEFE
ended 30th June 2017 is set out below: BUEZzMEMT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as  Director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
{ERES(PERALAFANEAR)
REBHHXARERNHE

Other

emoluments

paid or receivable

in respect of

Director's other

services in

connection with

the management

of the affairs of

the company

Salaries, or its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances HERALT

and benefits Employers ~ HENELA

in kind Discretionary contribution to HEREE

HH - bonuses Howng ~ pensonscheme  EEZHE
Fees Hfr2¥ AfME dlowance E+y [iBGES Totd
Name of Director EE ik RENHG WAL BEZY  RAREZHA LGl 2%
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

TR T TEL ThERL TERL T T

Executive Directors 8%

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) FERLE(ER) 1620 2310 = = I8 = 3948
MrHUI Kok Kiwong FEXEE 1620 2310 = = 18 = 3948
Dr WONG Chi Ying Arthony ETERT = 254 = = 18 = 2564
Madam LU Sau Lai BABRT = 1,787 = = 18 = 1,805
Mr NG Chi Mg REALE = 1765 = = I8 = 1783
Mr HUI Yan Kuen (Note) TABRE(HE) = 9| 134 = 18 = 1,103
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|5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 15 ESECNBNESERSEEEAR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

ZM&#)
() EFWz(E)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as  Director,

whether of the Company o its subsidiary undertaking
{FREZ(PERANTHENELA)
AET L Gk

Other

emoluments

paid or receivable

in respect of

Director's other

services in

connection with

the management

of the affairs of

the company

Salaries, or its subsidiary

other undertaking

allowances FERAAR

and benefits Employers  HEMBAT

in kind Discretionary contribution to HERRE

5 - bonuses Howsng ~ pensionscheme ~ EHEZHHE
Fees Hfr2d BfRE alowance EXH iBGE] Total
Name of Director EEi2 e REWNE oAl FERR  EAEHR B aE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TEn TERL TER TERL TERL TER

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUnES

MrHO Wai Ch, Paul fESEE 0 S 5 n - - W
Mr CHAN Dit Lung R 150 = = = = = 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung s 150 = = = = = 150
Total a% 3740 [1669 134 - 108 - 15651
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|5 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@

®)

©

@

(€

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Note:

MrHUI Yan Kuen appointed as Director of the Company on |st January 2017.

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2017: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2017: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors during

the year (2017: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the termination of

the appointment during the year (2017: Nil).

Consideration provided to or received by third parties for making available
directors’ services
No payment was made to any third parties making available the services of

them as a Director of the Company (2017: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,

controlled bodes corporate by and connected entities with such Directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such Directors

during the year (2017: Nil).
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|5 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

®

©

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

Saved as disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no
significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Company was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include three (2017: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable
to the remaining two (2017: one) individual(s) during the year were as

follows:

e MBI RMEE

15 ESZNBNEERSEEEAR

ZME (&)
() EFERSG  ZHAEAHEAE

(8

7

BT REEAMBRERMENRRE
R  REEARFRE A
NEYERFEFRAKE 2R
BNARBZEFERUMEER
PREEEARECEERS - W
FAR(ZE—LF: &)

BERBHMAL

REER ERURRFMAL
B (ZF—+F : Of)AE
2 AMEEREXZEFZAHT
RE S THOML(ZT -5
—f)REFMALTR EFEZH
MBI -

2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERr THET
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind M - He 2R REYNG 4,050 2,406
Discretionary bonus HEIEAL 1,620 150
Pension costs BIREKA 36 18
5,706 2574

The emoluments fell within the following bands: I S B TR A SE A

T i =] o

Number of individuals

AE
2018 2017
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) HERE(ET)

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T - 2,000,000 % 7T — |
HK$2,500,001 - HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 % 7T 5 4

No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of any office in connection with the
management of the affair of the Company and its subsidiaries during the year
(2017: same).

AEEYERLRAL(BRES
REMEE) B E (FARE M
AREBRERLZHE(ZF
—tFE)-
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|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

l6 W% BERRE

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buidings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
BELH HE equipment RER vehicles moulds Total
kgF  NxREE  BERRE  BOZRE A8 IARER e
HK$000 HK$1000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR TR TR T TR THL THL
At Ist July 2016 RIZ-—RF
tA-H
Cost B 119,140 47241 183509 18,341 8420 232 318973
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (41,641) (37:407) (157304) (15908) (7,006) (1,535) (260801)
Net book amount REFE 71499 9,834 26,205 2433 1414 787 118172
Year ended 30th June 2017 HE-T—+F
~AZTRILFE
Opening net book amount BUREFE 77499 9834 26,05 1433 | 414 787 118,172
Addttions ) - 9,356 4440 197 49 40 15524
Revaluation gain of property, 0% BEREE
plant and equipment on transfer ~ ERERENE
10 investment properties L EfthE 363 iy - = - - 363
Transfer to investment properties 1% AW £ &t (820) = = = = = (820)
Disposals & = (192) (19) (12) - = ()
Impairment wfE - () (201) 21) —~ - 22
Depreciation il @701) (4234) (6,080) (958) (543) (94) (14610)
Currency translation differences ~ E X Z 5 (518) (38) (184) (13) (1) (3) (767)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 7383 14721 2461 2626 1,351 730 117412
At 30th June 2017 RZB-t%
~A=TH
Cost N 117523 53657 185,667 19,131 8318 2348 386644
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (43700) (38931) (161,305) (16:484) (6967) (1618) (269,005)
Accumulated impairment ZiAfE i () (201) (21) - - (227)
Net book amount WREFE 73823 14721 246l 2626 1351 730 117412
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

6 M% BERRE®R)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and equipment Motor Tools and
BELH g equipment £BR vehicles moulds Total
REF  NREE  HERRE  BOZRE A& IAREER 2
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEn TEn TR TEn
Year ended 30th June 2018 BEZE-N\%
AR=TRILFE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 73813 14721 21,16 2,626 1,351 730 117,412
Additons )l - 9,137 14,307 1,9% 650 194 26284
Disposals & - (35) - (1) - — (36)
Depreciation ik (2738) (5.213) (7,026) (1,216) (500) (115) (16,808)
Currency translation differences ~ E X Z 8 1,537 139 53 f 3 8 2291
Closing net book amount BB FE 7,60 18,749 31,973 347 1,535 817 129,143
At 30th June 2018 RZZ-N\F
~AZTH
Cost A 120,020 62,435 205,595 21,017 8,741 2571 420,385
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (47,398 (43,686) (173421) (17,570) (7.212) (1,754) (291,041)
Accumulated impaiment ZithE — — (201) - - = (201)
Net book amount REFE 72,622 18,749 31973 3447 1,535 817 129,143
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|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16
Depreciation expense of HK$12,808,000 (2017: HK$11,478,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$184,000 (2017: HK$280,000) in distribution costs and
HK$3,816,000 (2017: HK$2,852,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2018, the net book amount of property, plant and equipment

pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$40,767,000 (2017: HK$41,685,000).

|7 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

ME - RERRE &)

WEEBM 128080008 L(ZF—+4F :
11478000 T ) E B IEEHER A -
184,000 7L(= T — + F : 280,000/
L) BB D A K& 3,816,000 7T
(ZF—tF : 28520008 L) EBEE
1THZH ©

RZE-NEXA=Z+H XEEERA
FEBERW07670008 T(ZF—+
F:41,68500087C) 2% - BE K&
HEEERTRT  AREERMGRITE
go

HELTHR T FEHE
AEBRAET R i FRAE s B
REBRNEERETIE  EREFES
G UNNE

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

T THET

At beginning of the year F4) 18,531 22,397

Transfer to investment properties REMEEBH — (2951

Amortisation B (679) (696)

Currency translation differences EHEE 547 (219)
At end of the year FR 18,399 18531

As at 30th June 2018, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights

pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$3,163,000 (2017: HK$3,200,000).
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e RRMEE
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REWx
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TT THRT
At beginning of the year F] 127,801 106,050
Addition #Zm — 4014
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) REMEZ AR BEKRFFET) 12,697 5,845
Transfer from property, plant and equipment ME - BERREEA — 820
Transfer from deposit for acquisition of properties WEYMEZEEEA — 8218
Transfer from leasehold land and land use rights MELH R TP AEEA — 2951
Currency translation differences EHEE 882 97)
At end of the year FR 141,380 127,80
As at 30th June 2018, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligation for BEZZ-N\EXA=TH A5EE
future repair and maintenance (2017: Nil). HE—FHEENRERABENEREE
(Z2—t%: 8)
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18

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

@

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was

performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates, to determine the fair

value of the investment properties as at 30th June 2018 and 2017. The

revaluation gains or losses are included in “other gains, net” (Note 7) in the

consolidated income statement. The following table analyses the investment

properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

18

RENF#)

@

AEENRENEAGENEET
R-BE-NEN_E-+FAA
= TRHITELMAE  UBTELD
ABE - ERRERERERES
Al ERM Al — 8T
(MEE7) » TRABBEED MK
RABEARNRENE -

Fair value measurements

at 30th June

using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3)
RAA=TANMAEANARA
BEa FENAABERNE

($38)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT THERT
Recurring fair value measurements REMAABETE
Investment properties: REME -
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IT¥REE-FH 113,000 100,500
— Car park units - Hong Kong —REL-FE 2,730 2,600
— Commercial office units and —BERAEERN—PE
apartment - PRC 8,864 8,724
— Industrial building units - PRC —I¥REEM—F 16,786 15,977
141,380 127,801

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers in/(out) of fair value hierarchy

levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.

There were no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in investment properties with fair

value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the

years ended 30th June 2018 and 2017.

18

e MBI RMEE

RENE#)

@ LAREEREE)
TRETREZZZ-N\ER_-F
—tFRNA=ZTHEFERMNBE
AABRBEANAAEEFE

(E3EWREANELD
2018
PRC Hong Kong Total
hE &k B

HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TERT TERT TR

Opening balance Hi&s 24,701 103,100 127,801
Net gain from fair value adjustment DREERABRRTE 67 12,630 12,697
Currency translation differences HE X =5 882 — 882
Closing balance HR R s eh 25,650 115,730 141,380
Total gains and changes in unrealised gains for & AU ES A RE LA B I e

the year included in the consolidated BE  AEEGRERER

income statement, under “other gains, net” BT Eof i zs — 5% I 67 12,630 12,697
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SFEMFmRME
18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REW=E#)
(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (a) LA EEFEE)
2017
PRC Hong Kong Total
i 5 ik
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
TR TET TET
Opening balance EIEES 8,500 97,550 106,050
Addition 2m 4014 — 4014
Transfer from deposit for acquisition of WM
properties BeEA 8218 — 8218
Net gain from fair value adjustment AREBEABRNGEE 115 4730 5,845
Transfer from property, plant and equipment Mm% BERZEEA - 820 820
Transfer from leasehold land and HELT K
land use rights T FREEA 2951 - 2951
Currency translation differences BN EH 97) . (97)
Closing balance Bk i 24701 103,100 127,801
Total gains and changes in unrealised gains for ~ F A a FARE AR B M
the year included in the consolidated 1% BREGRSRERE
income statement, under “other gains, net” [Efh s — 58P [I15 4,730 5845
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

®)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at HK$141,380,000
(2017: HK$127,801,000) as at 30th June 2018 and 2017 by Chung, Chan
& Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer who holds a
recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in
the locations and segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of
the investment properties are leased to third parties under operating lease
arrangements, further summary details of which are included in Note [8(e)

to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The finance department
reports directly to the CODM. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the CODM, finance department and the independent

valuer annually.
At each financial year end the finance department:

0 Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the

prior year valuation report; and
. Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date between

the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.

e MBI RMEE

18 REWZE#E)

()

AL B4 E R

AEENRENERBUEEME
MEETE_S—\FR=-2—t
A=+ HMEER 41,380,000
BIL(ZF— 5 : 127,801,000 %8
L) Wi B AR EE
B UHAHENREEEDE
B M AT S R - HE AR
BYFENCEHERHERTE=
7 E-SHBERE R B REN
it 18(e) P HE ©

REBM BN HRE B OB
VA EMMGEETR o BB
ERMBEREEAREER - BF
ReRERE M RLEnFe
AWmEERENERER -

ESEMHEER - MHHHE

o BEUWBUMERENFRAE
EABA

o HEMEMAEELFERE

o EBUMHERETHR

NEEREAY  F3IBAAEE
MEFHEREZRRE BB
B EMZD AR
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

18 REME A

(c)  Valuation techniques (o) 1FERN
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs AIEEDNEEIE 3PN )i
AAEERE
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally determined FEENREMEAABE—K
using the income capitalisation method which largely involves the use of BREBWEEMGE - WAEEER
unobservable inputs and taking into account the significant adjustments on ATABRBEA  TERERE
passing rentals of the current leases and capitalisation rates including the MENRKRHESRESHEBERX
outgoings (“Yields"). These significant unobservable inputs include: MENMEE ([EER] ) ME
RBE - WEEBATAERBA
B
Fair value
at 30th Relationship of
June 2018 unobservable inputs
R=Z-N\E Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~AA=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs AUEEAA
i ZDEE fhERH FIEEBRA FUBERAEE HARBENBRE
HK$’000
TER
Industrial building units — Hong Kong 113,000 Income Uit passing rents HK$9.03 - HK$1 1.19 per The higher the rental value,
ISAEEN-FE capitalication  EfIRHHRE month per square foot the higher the fair value,
method BYAREAI0BT and vice versa
Yot EILI9%L  BELS AAEEES
RZ TR
Yields 297%-371% The higher the Yields,
EEX the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
2REH5 AABELE
RZ TR
Car park units — Hong Kong 2730 Income  Unit passing rents ~ HK$5,000 - HK$8,475 per The higher the rental value,
FEf-FE capitalication  ERIEERE month per unit the higher the fair value,
method BB H500087T and vice versa
sz 284758 BELR AAEEES
RZ A
Yields 687%- 10.17% The higher the Yields,
¥8% the lower the fair value,
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e MBI RMEE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REW=E#)
(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) BEFME)
Fair value
at 30th Relationship of
June 2018 unobservable inputs
R=E-N\E Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~E=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs FUREGA
it ZRAEE fhERE  FIREBA AUBRBAEE HAABENBRE
HK$’ 000
TER
Commercial office units and 8,864 Income  Unit passing rents ~ RMB68.52 - RMB94.64 per The higher the rental value,
apartment - PRC capitalisation  BfUREE month per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERLEEN—PHE method Y ARG and vice versa
Yk 6852- M6 NRE  HEMR MEEER
RZ TR
Yields 321%-443% The higher the Yields,
ZEX the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
EEXHE  AhBESE
RZ TR
Industrial building units - PRC 16,786 Income  Unit passing rents RMB9.64 per month per The higher the rental value,
TEREEf - capitalication  EfIREHE square meter the higher the fair value,
method YAREA and vice versa
it HARE REEE AAEEEE
R
Yield 8.56% The higher the Yield,
ZEX the lower the fair value,

and vice versa
ZERHS M EEWE
RZ T84
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18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued)

18 REME A

© HERME)

Fair value
at 30th Relationship of
June 2017 unobservable inputs
RZE—+F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~AA=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs FBRGA
fit LDAEE fbERkl  FTBEEHA FIBFGAGE HRABEMER
HK$'000
TAR
Industrial building units - Hong Kong 100,500 Income  Unit passing rents HK$9.03 - HK$11.19 per The higher the rental value,
IXAEEN-F8 capitalication  ERIREBRE month per square foot the higher the fair value,
method FYAREAI0IBT and vice versa
Yk EILI9%EL  BELR 2AEEES
RZ TR
Yields 371% - 4.60% The higher the Yields,
ZEX the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
LR - M EEDE
RZ TR
Car park units — Hong Kong 2,600 Income  Unit passing rents ~ HK5,000 - HK$8,250 per The higher the rental value,
FEfi-F% capitalisation  BfIRERE month per unit the higher the fair value,
method GEMEAS000BLE and vice versa
gk 82508 HELS RAEBESS
R
Yields 732%- 11.12% The higher the Yields,
ZEX the lower the fair value,
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e MBI RMEE

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 18 REW=E#)
(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued) (c) BEFME)
Fair value
at 30th Relationship of
June 2017 unobservable inputs
RZE—+F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs FBRGA
it ZRREE fbERl  ATBREHA ABFGAGE HRABEMER
HK$'000
TR
Commercial office units and 8,724 Income  Unit passing rents ~ RMB68.52 - RMB97.79 per The higher the rental value,
apartment - PRC capitalisation  BAUREAE month per square meter the higher the fair value,
BERLEEN—PHE method BYAREA685 ARK and vice versa
Yeg & EIHARYE  HEES AAEEES:
RZ TR
Yields 3.56% - 489% The higher the Yields,
ZEX the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
YR%H5  AABELE
RZ TR
Industrial building units - PRC 15977 Income Uit passing rents RMB9.64 per monith per The higher the rental value,
IXREER -+ apitaliation  EfIFEHE square meter the higher the fair value,
method BYAREGAI4ANRK and vice versa
gt A HESS  AMEESR -
RZ TR
Yield 9.98% The higher the Yield,
ZEX the lower the fair value,
and vice versa
2R%H5  AABELE
RZ IR
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year. FRERMN LR EE o
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e BRRME

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(d)  As at 30th June 2018, the fair value of investment properties pledged
as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$35,322,000 (2017: HK$31,414,000).

(e)  The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

18 REME A

(d RIE-N\ESA=1+AH &EY
FRMEFE 4353220008 (=
T—+F 314140008 L) E &
BTRT AAKERERITE
o

() BETTHHMELAE  *15
ERKRERENT -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
Not later than one year —FRQ 5014 5,857
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRETMERAE 1,101 3,647
6,115 9,504
19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS BRERE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET

Technical know-how SR
Cost AR 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment ZERME (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount REFE — ~

During the years ended 30th June 2018 and 2017, the Directors assessed the
recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the carrying value

of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its future use and full

provision was made.
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e MBI RMEE

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 20 AHHENKEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Equity securities, unlisted FrmEFER 2,000 2,000
Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% (2017: 3.6%) equity interest AHHENBEERRNTERBRE L H#
in an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is SAMzELEMRRZEDZ=FR(Z
denominated in HK dollar. None of the financial asset is impaired as at the year T—+F FGOLTEHN )R T
end. PABTTREBAL
SUBSIDIARIES 21 MEBAF

21

The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2018 are disclosed in Note
35.

(a)  Matenal non-controlling interests
The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2018 was HK$24,826,000
(2017: HK$23,065,000), of which HK$25,930,000 (2017: HK$24,505,000)
was attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Materials Limited
(“NHEPML™). The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries

were not material.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of RMB1,374,000 (2017:
RMB1,902,000), equivalent to approximately HK$1,636,000 (2017:
HK$2,186,000), were held in the PRC and were subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provided
for restrictions on exporting capital from the region, other than through
normal dividends or remittance of revenue income through import/export

companies.

RZE-N\FRA=THANTIEMNER
A FEB I 35 3% -

(a) EAMHEHED
RZE-NEXNA=+HMEE
| ¥ 25 48 %8 5 24,826,00078 TT.(=
T —+F:2306500087L) &
H125930,0008 T(Z T — L 4 :
245050008 T ) BRRATERE
HERRA(TREIREHR]) -
M HTB AR A BRI R
WARERK o

EARA
REIBZHARERBIR
FAREI1374000T(Z T —
F: AR %19020007 (% E
#11,636000/8 L (ZF — L F:
2,186,000 7T)) FHAEFE - %
EHAINEEHIFTRE o LFINE
B I IR 5 & & & B R BURINGE
BIEERF RBBELOARE
ez IBRAN)
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21
(a)  Matenal non-controlling interests (Continued)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary

that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

Pt S 2 =) (&)

@) EREHE R (R

ABERIEH B HHE L AR

ZHHEH

AT 8RR BEANIEHE
A B A RME R AR -

Summarised balance sheet FELEREX
NHEPML
RATEER
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
TExT FAT
Current e
Assets BE 109,669 109,580
Liabilities =R (51,793) (55,164)
Current net assets FRBEE 57,876 54,416
Non-current ERE
Assets BE 51,669 48967
Liabilities BE (591) (418)
Non-current net assets FERBEE 51,078 48,549
Net assets FEE 108,954 102,965
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e MBI RMEE

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21 MEARGE)
(a)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) EAXBHFERER (E)
‘Summanised income statement and statement of comprehensive income BERZZRE W %
NHEPML
REIRER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Revenue zs 239,798 199,207
Profit before income tax T A4t 23,156 16,535
Income tax expense HIET (4,908) (3,076)
Post-tax profit BRI 1R 8 A 18,248 13,459
Other comprehensive income Hiviralias 740 (169)
Total comprehensive income melnas 18,988 13,290
Total comprehensive income allocated to el BERR
non-controlling interests IR 4519 3,163
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest SR T IR RS (3,094) (1,752)
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21 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MEBARME)
(@) Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (a) EBERBHFER R (E)
Summanised cash flows HERTnEX
NHEPML
RETREN
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Cash flows from operating activities REXB2REN
Cash generated from operations REXGHEEZR S 37,072 9493
Income tax paid PG (5,660) (1923)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMEEZFRE 31,412 7,570
Net cash used in investing activities REXBMERZFR (10,957) (7.379)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities ~ B EEBFAT(FER) /EL2FRE (23,045) 969
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents & RBEEE 2 (R ) /1N (2,590) 160
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FNzHRekReEHE 4,010 2,859
Currency translation differences EHEE 4 )
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRzZAE KRR 2ER 1,424 4010

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

A EER R E AR AT

2o
22 INVENTORIES 2 =FE

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx THET

Trading stocks EHEBEER 173,601 132,089
Raw materials R 81,710 80,315
Finished goods B 34,847 43363
290,158 255,767

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in the
consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$1,646,422,000
(2017: HK$1,283,753,000).

Provision for impairment of inventories amounted to HK$3,499,000 (2017: reversal
of impairment of HK$807,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the
consolidated income statement.
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e RRMEE
23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 ESRUMKRERER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TT THRT
Trade receivables EC e 266,367 236,285
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B EMGURE R (4,389) (4902)
261,978 231,383
Bills receivable EWZEE 22,314 33,499
284,292 264,882

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

B RUGREBRE B Mo &% REAL

currencies:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FAT
HKS$ BT 80,686 65,295
RMB AR 143,429 138972
usD EIy 42252 32,018
266,367 236,285

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the

Group has a large number of customers.

BHRNHR  REERARA BERD -

HRFAEERAAEZRFPRE  UE
HREFLEEEBHRT AR -
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 23
The majority of the Group’s sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90 days.
The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank's acceptance bill. The ageing

analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

ESRURREREE &)
AEERBOHEHENCEERR=TE
N+B - ERAERRIBITALER
FRET - BHRERFRERA 2R
AT :

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

TEr TET

Below 90 days 0-90 H 252,698 218,020
91 - 180 days 91-180H 7,701 9,963
Over 180 days #818 180 H 5,968 8,302
266,367 236,285

As of 30th June 2018, trade receivables of HK$48,731,000 (2017: HK$40,461,000)
were past due but not considered to be impaired. The credit quality of trade
receivables neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to
historical information about the counterparty default rates. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

RZZE—N\EXA=Z+H EHEKX
48,731,000 8 7T (ZF—+ 4 : 40,461,000
AL EEBHELRHNE - TR S
RENEFRURNEEEERERS
ZEHHA R ENREERETT
- WEFBEIRZEKMIARRE
HEBNBEUER LEEHRKZMN
BRECAITIT -

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET

Past due by 6 A
| - 30 days [-30 H 35,108 24610
31 - 60 days 31-60 B 11,132 9,068
Over 60 days i 60 B 2,491 6,783
48,731 40,461
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 30th June 2018, trade receivables of HK$4,389,000 (2017: HK$4,902,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$4,389,000 (2017:
HK$4,902,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate to a
number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult economic
situations. Majority of these trade receivables have been past due by more than
360 days (2017: 360 days).

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group is as

23

e MBI RMEE

ESRURRERRE &)
RZZE—N\EXA=Z+H EHELX
4,389,000 (=T — 5 : 4902,000/%
T BELEAR43890008L(ZE—+
£ 4902,000/87T)  ERIRENE 5 E
WHEERERRERAIMEERZH
RBUKP o tZRKKAHBME 8
HiE360B(ZF—+F : 360R) -

AEE B ZRMGAERBEZESINT -

follows:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET
At beginning of the year F9 4,902 4738
Provision for impairment REES 1,188 270
Whrite-off during the year AEE R (1,786) (80)
Currency translation differences BHERE 85 (26)
At end of the year FR 4,389 4902

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

EUREBEZHBRFER—BANTH
A WATHEEREL :

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000

T FTET

HK$ BT 1,211 2,633
uUsD ey 3,507 —
RMB AR 17,596 30,866
22314 33,499

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is no

recent history of default on bills receivable.

BURECERERARAEBEEOR
R Y EERTE 2 HRADE -
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23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank’s acceptance bills
amounting to approximately HK$2,997,000 (2017: HK$18,566,000) with recourse

in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2018. The transactions have been accounted

for as collateralised bank advances (Note 29).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the

carrying values of the receivables (2017: same). Other than the bank's acceptance

bills collateralised as bank advances, the Group does not hold any collateral as

security.

24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward foreign exchange contracts

As at 30th June 2018, the Group had an outstanding forward foreign exchange
contracts of HK$35 (2017: HK$29,000) mainly to purchase USD (2017: purchase

USD). The maximum notional principal amounts of this outstanding forward foreign

exchange contract at 30th June was as follows:

23

24

ESRURREREE &)
RZE-—NEAAZTHXEEZHE
DAHEH2997000F L(ZE—+F:
18,566,000/ 7T ) M RITA L ERRER T
RITAREBR S - FARZEIRER
{ERERITBR(HIEE29) °

EHRSEY ERARNRSRERAL
RLEABRRERNEREE( Tt
FRER)  BRERTRITABRRREH
RITERERI - KRELFHA TR
REROERM o

fTEEMIA
SNEEHA K

RZZE—NEXAZ+H XEEEH
E3SBT(ZT—HF:29000%7T) 2
ARBINERBENEEUNEET(ZT
—tF:BEn)  c RANAZTHREXR
RWPHNERBAENZESXERS BN
N

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Sell HKS for USD THEBTUEAZT 148,200 148,200
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FEMBHRRMEE
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 BHERBITES
(a)  Cash and cash equivalents () HEREZFHE
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FAT
Cash on hand Re#ek 716 657
Bank balances RITEEBR 117,000 105,290
117,716 105,947

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

ReRROTEHATIEERE

fir :
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT
HK$ BT 14,268 13,578
RMB AR 85,299 81,504
UsD eI 17,966 10,699
Others Hith 183 166
117,716 105,947

Cash at bank eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit

rates.

The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$85,456,000 (2017:
HK$81,937,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of

these funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions

imposed by the PRC government.

BITRSRESARTERZEY

MR EREUH 2.

AEBzRERBIERHA

85,456,000 (= & — + & :

81,937,000 7T ) I H B Z 3R 17 4%
FeoHEBESELTHERBR
BB B e 2 SMEE HIAR 16
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25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Contitued)
(b)  Restnicted bank deposits

As at 30th June 2018, RMB30,071,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$35,799,000) (2017: RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,989,000)) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for serving
of debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 29). The restricted
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.75% (2017: 1.75%) per annum

with remaining maturity less than twelve months after the balance sheet

date.

26 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables by invoice date is as follows:

25 RERBITEHR#E)

)

IR B RT3,

—E-NEXAZ+H' AR¥E
30,071,000 7T(% B #135,799,000
BTIZTE—+t&: AR¥
20,000,000 7T ( % B £122,989,000 %
L)) RERFIMBITER - TR
RITERBRTREBRENNER
EE(HE29) XRHOETHE
FEBEEREI 2 —HER(ZF
—tF Bz Hth)ZEE
ME - WREERRR B ORI
RAUR+=MEA -

26 BEEARRENRE
BHENFMEMRRRERA 2K

AT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THERT
Below 90 days 0-90 H 84,434 87,425
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 111 60
Over 180 days #8i8 180 H 1,514 1,028
86,059 88513

The carrying values of trade and bills payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

BHRNFMENEBECREAEEAD
REERE YA THNEBRENL

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FTAT

HKS BT 3,402 3321
RMB AR 39,211 33,369
UsD ey 43,446 51,820
Others Hip g — 3
86,059 88513
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Share capital

27

e MBI RMEE
BRAK RAEE
S ZN
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital

HK$0.10 each  nominal value
EREE BRAEE
0.10B7TZ HK$' 000
EERHE THET

Authorised:
At st July 2016, 30th June 2017, Ist July 2017 and
30th June 2018

EERA :
RZZE—R"F+tA—B  —T—+F
NA=Zt+H  —E—+&+A—H

E=F-N\FRA=TH 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EEITRARRA -
At st July 2016, 30th June 2017, Ist July 2017 and RZZE—R"F+tA—B Z2—+F
30th June 2018 NAZTR ZE—tFEA-HE
—Z-N\FRA=+H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium REEE
HK$'000
TAERT

At Ist July 2016, 30th June 2017,
st July 2017 and 30th June 2018

R-F-AFLA—B —F—LFRA=1A
“E—+tFtA-ARZT-\FXA=TH 62466
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28 RESERVES 28 féfe
Other reserves
HipffE
Available-
Capital forsale  Exchange
reserve financial asset  fluctuation
(Note)  Revaluation reserve reserve Retained
EXfiE reserve g EX  Sub-tonl earnings Total
(W) Efsft ZERRE KOES Mt REEN aE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000  HK§000  HK$000
Tér TEr  TEn  TEn  TER  TER  TER
At IstJuly 2016 KRB EtA-A 615 7590 1310 40388 49903 286,048 359!
Profi o the year RERH = - - = = 34430 34430
Currency translaton differences EXZE = = = (418) (4186) = (416)
Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment 0% BERRREAZRENZ ZEfRYE
on transfer to investment properties - 363 - - 363 - 363
Acquistion of interest in a subsidiary without NEREHRONBA DERNE(H %)
change of control (Note 36) (2120) - - - (2120) o (2120)
201602017 inerim diidend paid FHZF—R/Z5-tFEPERE - ~ = = = (369) (36%)
At 30th June 2017 RZE-tE A=1H (1,505) 7953 1310 3602 43940 316,786 360746
At IstJuly 2017 R=B-tE+A-A (1,505) 7953 1310 36,02 4390 316,786 360,746
Profit for the year REER - — — - = 471 471
Currency translation differences ERzE — — — 14508 14508 — 14508
Acquistion of nterest in a subsidiary without MHE RN A D ERNE
change of control (Note 36) (P3E36) (520) - - - (520) - (520)
201672017 firal dvidend paid B/ 25t EERDRSE = = = = = (7384 (7384
201712018 interim didend paid FH=B—t/25-)\EET ke - - - = = (369 (3692)
At 30th June 2018 RZB-N\ERA=TH (2025) 7953 1310 50710 57948 351,88 409829
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28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 fRiE#E)
Note: Bt st
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
Capital reserve from reorganisation (Note (a)) BRREER (M @) 408 408
Changes of interests in subsidiaries without change of control (Note (b))~ NBBUK K IF IR B A Al EnE g
(PR 3E (b)) (2433) (1913)
(2,025) (1,505)
(a) The capital reserve of the Group represents the aggregate amount of the non-voting @) $§ Bz EANREEBENRBEBBRERE
deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited and the difference between the AR EREZRELTRMOEERR
nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the aggregate — j'L NWNNERARFREEEEA(E
nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group 4B |) BB 1T 27 BB AN TE (B A 32 6y Mk B it
reorganisation in 1994 (the “Reorganisation”). BAT B A ELERE 25 o
(b)  The balance represents the net changes in capital reserve arising from the change of b) FBORREAMBATEREE(T
interests in subsidiaries without change of control. SRy FTE R B A RS o
29 BORROWINGS 9
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Bank loans due for repayment within FR—FABEBIRITENR -
one year-secured (Note 3.1(e)) BEBA(ME3 () 89,157 109,047
Bank loans due for repayment after one year which contain FR—FREREASEEREN
a repayment on demand clause-secured (Note 3.1(e)) X2 BITER—
BEM (3 () 3,033 667
Trust receipt loans due for repayment within FR—FABRZERBEER -
one year-secured (Note 3.1(e)) BHEAFE31(E) 270,085 194,292
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) RITARERBF (M 23) 2,997 18,566
Bank overdrafts - secured RITEX—HEM 10,257 9,258
375,529 331,830
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29

BORROWINGS (Continued)
The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values
as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's borrowings are

denominated in the following currencies:

29

RE#)

FEEEEZREEEERAEEM

B UWATHERREN

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

HK$ BT 230,634 152,980
RMB AR 71,183 78,754
UsD ET 73,712 100,096
375,529 331,830

At 30th June 2018, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable within

five years.

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan

agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

REERDZEREERETBEE
BT

REFERREER

%0

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

TERr THET

Within | year —ER 372,496 331,163
Between | to 2 years —FEMF 3,033 667
375,529 331,830

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the weighted

average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

NEERBREAKEZERYMEZ
SR SN FIRRNT -

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER FET

- at fixed rates —EEFE 367,279 317,539
- at floating rates —FBHE 8,250 14,291
375,259 331,830
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued)

30

e MBI RMEE

29 BE#E)

2018 2017
HK$ RMB usD HK$ RMB usD
B AR T BT ARE e
Trust receipt loans FREEER 3.65% 5.44% 4.06% 290% 5.22% 3.14%
Short-term bank loans RHERITER 3.28% 5.75% = 2.78% 5.73% =
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5.00% 6.95% = 5.00% 695% =
Bank advances for discounted bills RITABREEBR — 5.70% — — 5.35% —

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note [6),
leasehold land and land use rights (Note |7), investment properties (Note 18) and
restricted bank deposits (Note 25 (b)) of the Group.

Bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for as
collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank's acceptance bills and the
related proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills
receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings respectively at the end of the

reporting period.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the

consolidated balance sheet:

30

BROTERAREBEHDNME - BE R
REME 1) HELHRLHERE
(B 17) ~ WEDE (M 18) RZRH
HERITIE R (PR 25(b)) R -

M ERECERREIR TRITAE
RITEFENRERCORITRER - 1
BEABERAMEMABTAILERE
REBZRABERERDAERRAKE
ZEFRET R EREE (T2 RE

HIEE

BB
ERETARTENSHAEHNBEER
BAERAEAGHY BEERGERIR
Fl BB R - RIATRELEHEE
HEEERKE Bt ABBEER
TeBRERBERBRMIIRK

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000

TEr THET

Deferred income tax assets ERERIBEE 7,497 5,655
Deferred income tax liabilities BLERBEE (6,917) (6,863)
580 (1,208)
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30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows:

30 EEBIEE)
BBEEREHEROEFLHNT :

2018 2017

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TRT

At beginning of the year F1 (1,208) (99)
Charged to consolidated income statement (Note | 1) TEERE W R MG (FE 1) 1,954 (1,103)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) HE—MBAR(HES) (119) —
Currency translation differences BN ER (47) (6)
At end of the year FR 580 (1,208)

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, are as follows:

Fair value gains on

FRECHBEERAEZEYH(EF—
BBt e AT T

Accelerated tax

Deferred income tax liabilities: investment properties depreciation Total
ELEDRAME RENELABERS MEHBHE nE
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TER TAT TER TAT TER TAT
At beginning of the year E4) 1,387 568 6,318 6,188 7,705 6,756
Charged to consolidated EEFaKER MR
income statement 3 826 107 182 110 1,008
Currency translation differences L Z %8 50 ) 153 (52) 203 (59)
At end of the year X 1,440 1,387 6,578 6318 8,018 7,705
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DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 EEHIE M)
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the vear, FRNEEHBEERAGZ#BH(EE—
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax B E < e ESHA) T - (&)
jurisdiction, are as follows: (Continued)
Decelerated tax
Deferred income tax assets: Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
EEDEEE £ HEER HERBRE R
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HK$O00 HK$000 HKFO00 HK$000 HK$O00
TExr TRT TEr THxT TExR TEx TErR TEx
At beginning of the year F9) 3,764 3839 589 965 2,144 1,853 6,497 6,657
Credited/(charged) to consolidated ~ EfRAME R
income statement A/ (1) 1,724 (40) 144 (365) 196 310 2,064 (95)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEAR = = (119) = = = (119) =
Currency translation differences ERES 97 (35) 2 (In 57 (19) 156 (65)
At end of the year FR 5,585 3764 616 589 2,397 2,144 8,598 6,497
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to RAEBNBBBEMNERORTMER
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable BEERRABZRBMN A kA

profits is probable. At 30th June 2018, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted to approximately
HK$268,179,000, (2017: HK$256,951,000). These tax losses have no expiry date
except that approximately HK$6,699,000 (2017: HK$8,788,000) will expire from
2019 to 2023 (2017: 2018 to 2022). The potential deferred income tax assets
in respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised amounted to

approximately HK$44,819,000 (2017: HK$42,858,000).

As at 30th June 2018, deferred income tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to unremitted profits eamed by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$253,943,000 (2017: HK$201,123,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BRARERHBMERNIE S
T-NFRAA=TH FEEVEH
A#EBNEERRERT W RO HB
Eﬂaiﬁzsmwooo,%m(_? T&F:
256,951,000 8 T ) EREL A EHEEL
44,819,000 T(ZF —L 4 : 42,858,000
ABT) HZE-NFEFT-=F(Z
—tF  ZE-N\FEZTZZF)F
OB BEERD 6699008 T(ZF
—+% :878800087T) °

R-ZE-N\EXA=Z1+H AEELX
SETHENERA B RIKER S
il £ £9253,9430008 L(ZF — L F
201,123,000 87T ) 2 R ZFERL TR
Bt AASBERHZSERERL
BREKE UARRARZERZZER
EEA T ERD -
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31  CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3l REREREXR
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from () BHAENEESEFEL S HE
operations: A -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Profit before income tax AT A 66,429 49,575
Adjustments for: FHEIER
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W% BERRETE 16,808 14,610
— (Gain)/loss on disposal of property, —HENE  BEREEZ
plant and equipment (W), Ei8 (108) 123
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights ~ — 8 E& 1 Jo £t 50 R 4 85 679 696
— Fair value gains on forward exchange contracts —MNEERENZ AR BERR (29) (555)
— Fair value gains on investment properties —-REMENRARBERE (12,697) (5,845)
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables — B 5 RYFUREER 1,188 270
— Provision for impairment of other receivables — H R E LR — 2,566
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment ~FEREREE,/(BE) — %8
of inventories, net 3,499 (807)
— Provision for impairment of property, —M% - BEREEREERE
plant and equipment — 227
— Reversal of impairment of deposit for —WRBYE B RERED
acquisition of properties — (8218)
— Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) —HE—MBA AR (Fs) (398) —
— Interest income —FIEMA (553) (582)
— Interest expense —FMBZH 13,086 11,140
Changes in working capital: BEELE
— Inventories -FE (32,222) (28015)
— Trade and bills receivables, other receivables, —BORNARERER
prepayments and deposits Hip M - BRR kRS (7,367) (30,640)
— Trade and bills payables, other payables, - BIRNTRENTERE - Hib
deposits received and accruals BNZRENTERERER 15 26,283
Cash generated from operations REXBEE 2B 48,330 30,828
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31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continuea) 3l REBRERERM)

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of property, (b) HHEEEZTEXA  HEYFE
plant and equjpment comprise: 5 RR G HIpT i3, 75 -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Net book amount (Note 16) REFE (M 16) 36 223
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, HENE BEREELZ
plant and equipment (Note 9) Wegs /(&) (FHEE9) 108 (123)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HENE  BE RXEMER
plant and equipment 144 100
(c)  For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash () BHEEHEEREXNE  HERE
equivalents include the following: EEFABLTER -

2018 2017

HK$000 HK$'000

Tz FHT

Cash and bank balances (Note 25) Re RFITer(E25) 117,716 105,947
Bank overdrafts (Note 29) RITE X (H15E29) (10,257) (9,258)
107,459 96,689
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31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(d)  The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as follows:

31

GELERER#)
(@ BEFBIREERBEHXMT -

Bank
borrowings
RITEE
HK$’000
TER
At Ist July 2016 RZZF—-~"FtH—H 270,688
Cash flow Ben
— Proceed from bank loans —¥MERITER 502,001
— Repayment of bank loans —BERIRTEN (501,792)
— Increase in trust receipt loans —EFEUIEE TG 52,190
Non-cash changes RS E
Exchange differences bE N ERR (515)
At 30th June 2017 RZZ—tFX A=+H 322572
At Ist July 2017 R-ZE—+tF+H—H 322,572
Cash flow Ban
— Proceed from bank loans —¥MBRITER 409,280
— Repayment of bank loans —BERITER (440,228)
— Increase in trust receipt loans —EREBRE L M 71,599
Non-cash changes FReEE
Exchange differences EHER 2,049
At 30th June 2018 RZZ-\FXA=+H 365,272
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32 COMMITMENTS

@

®)

e MBI RMEE

32 EE
Capital commitments (a) EBAEE
At 30th June 2018, the Group had the following capital commitments for RZZE-N\FAA=1AH  F5E
addition of property, plant and equipment: BBENE  BERRE2EREE
e
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Contracted but not provided for BEROBRER 2,550 3,187
Commitment under operating leases (b) HEHERE

As at 30th June 2018, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings as follows:

RZE-N\FRXA=1H  £&H
BRTIISRABE AR RE
FAAHHEERE 2 RK&RD
HEMH

2018 2017

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TET

Not later than one year —FR 6,391 4946
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRETNERAE 8,559 10,360
14,950 15,306

Note:

On 15th June 2017, the Group entered into a non-cancellable operating lease agreement
with an agent of the local PRC government authority to lease an industrial building premise
for 5 years with a minimum lease payment of RMB8.5 per square meter. During the non-
cancellable lease period, the Group commits an annual tax payment of RMB3,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$3,571,000), including the corporate income tax and
value added tax, from its business operation in the region to the local PRC government
authority. Any shortfall on the committed tax payment would be paid in form of cash to the
agent of the local PRC government authority. The above lease commitments only include
commitments for basic rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rentals
payable, if any, when future tax payment falls short of the pre-determined level as it is not

possible to determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

Bz

RZZ—tF ATHA  F&EH—
TEREREME—FBUH A RER
BRBEZ-ANAFZTUREL
EHESN REHEEABTEARA
R85 o R HEHEEHRER -
AEEFHEREL MR Z HELER
ZHEM A RNANGEREARE
3,000,000 7. (% 6 493,571,000 7T ) 2
HIB(BEREREH RIEER) £
REBZAEREFARSH A FZT
BB RERES N - tlzHE
AEABEEARGAR  YTREE
RRBEREBKF ZEIMNERTAS
EENE) ALSRIMEESERE
BEME -

Annual Report % £ # & 2017/2018 | 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement

eV BRRM T

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 HEEALRS
The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the AL B Good Benefit Limited (FERB
British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The remaining RRBTMAL AR))ES - BEAR
46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares of Good Benefit ARBOZAT=H=k#E H#hzA
Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the Company. AZOTAEHTRERRBZEE ° Good

Benefit Limited BE F RE 0 RIERAR
AN EZTERFA -

The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group and ARRAEEHRERFTEECER
details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |5 to the consolidated BEEAE  HFAFMEREEMBR
financial statements. KM ISHE -
In addition to those disclosed in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, BrézE BB mAMI T ISR TSN - B
the following transactions were carried out with related parties: EATHETNRSMT
2018 2017
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Operating lease rentals paid to related parties: KNTEREALHERS
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —RBEARAR (KHEM)) 970 948
— Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited —BAREBRHARAT]
(Note (i)) GED) 907 557
1,877 1,505
Notes: Bgst -
() Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr HUI Sai Chung, a Director of the () SBRERAABANAESFEELE
Company. 2BHE -
(i) Shine Systems Plastic Materials Company Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr HUI iy BREBRHMERABRAABTEST
Kwok Kwong, a Director of the Company. BfEE2EES -
Operating lease rentals paid to related parties are on mutually agreed basis. YNFEBEALHHRERSRERR

BARI -
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ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2018:

34 BRRERDF

EERARDBZHLIERA B A Good
Benefit Limited (TER B4R REEE M

XL Z A7) °

35 FEREQF

RZZE-NFRA=TH KRAZE

EMBRAMT :
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name ML i B BRTRAR Principal activities =~ AATHFAEZ
=L R+ E AR RA/EREE IREYK BERRFEIL
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited EEERRES 100ETT REER
(Note b) (Ff&Eb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$93,200000  Manufacture and sale of colorants 100
Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000/ 7T and compounded plastic resins
REREBBRE enterprise SEREEECE R
ARAF P E EEARBE
*NEBELE
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong HK$500,000 Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited BE 500,000/ 7T colorants and compounded
HEERERAAE plastic resins
HERBEREBHR
EEA NN
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 Manufacture of 762
Plastic Materials Limited BB 2,000,000 87T engineering plastic

BRETRREHMERAF

products
BETR
PBRBEM
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

35

FEMBLF 4

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B TR <4 bt ERITRARE Principal activites ~ ADQFHFEZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES IREK BRRFEIL
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong HK$1,000 Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited oy ordinary shares property holding
BARZBERHERAR 100077 & A BAZBRR
SSERYES
HK$500,000 non-voting
deferred shares (note ¢)
500,000 AT ERRHE
(s c)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong HK$500,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) Bk 500,000/ 7T BEZBRH
Limited
BREZBRH(FE)
NG
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 87T colorants and compounded
LRREBBIRY enterprise plastic resins
BRAF] R BERHERET
* BB REE AN
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) TEWB DR E)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name M R EEE Principal activites ~ AATEEZ
#8 R+ ENER BRAE/ERES IREK BRREXEIL
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
EEREBRBEREM enterprise plastic resins
ARAF P BENHEEBT
*INEBEALE REE A MK
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
REEZERLA A 5,00087C plastic products
REL
HELRBEMR
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC US$200,000 Trading of engineering 76.2
Plastic (Shanghai) * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise BETRERER
RETIZBH A
(LB)BRAR *OEBELE
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture of engineering 762
Materials (Shanghai) * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise BETRBBER
RITREM(LE) P E
AR *HEBELR
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC US$100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 100,000 3 7T compounded plastic resins
BEERERE enterprise BEEGH
BRAR P E REEA MK
*SNEBELRE
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35

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

FEMBLF 4

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B TR <4 bt ERITRARE Principal activites ~ ADQFHFEZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES IREK BRRFEIL
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
(Hong Kong) Limited oy 1,000,000 AT plastic products
RETREH(ERE) BEETREBEM
ARAF
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$1,200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Company * wholly foreign-owned (2017:US$200,000) colorants and compounded
Limited enterprise 1,200,000 % 7T plastic resins
EFIRETEBRH hE (ZB—+&: BERHERBHR
BRAT *HEBARR 200,000%7T) BB K
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing The PRC RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R#& BEEZBRE
BT BEE enterprise
ARAF i
*NEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 % 7T BEEZBRH
LERERER enterprise
RRAEERRA B
*INEBELE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong HK$10,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Company Limited BB 10,000 7T biodegradable plastic
RERREHARAR materials
RENHEE
RRZEBRH
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMEAE ()
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of

operation and

* kind of legal entity

paid up share capital/

registered capital

equity held by
the Company

Name BT <y 5ot ERITRARE Principal activites ~ AQFHEZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES IEXY BRREXESH
Ngai Hin Engineering The PRC HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastic (Dongguan) * wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 /7T plastic products
Company Limited enterprise BETRZRER
RERIIREN i
AR *ONEBELF
Shanghai Coltec Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T compounded plastic resins
LEEEY enterprise BEEGRHK
BHARAH I R YRl
*SNEBELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic The PRC HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Company Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 7T compounded plastic resins
REBEZER enterprise BEEGRHR
BHARAH I EEA NN
*INEBEALE
NHH Worldwide Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 Logistics Service 84
Logistics Limited ) 1,000,000 7T MR R (2017:739)
RERHYRERAA
Tianjin Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Company Limited ~ * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 3% 7T BEEZRBRH
RIEREH enterprise
HEERAF i
*INEBELE
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMEAR ()
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of

operation and

* kind of legal entity

paid up share capital/

registered capital

equity held by
the Company

Name B TR <4 bt ERITRARE Principal activites ~ ADQFHFEZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES IREK BRRFEIL
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$ 10,000 Investment holding 100
BAETRARRAF B 10,0008 7T BRER
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 AR #& BEEZRBRF
BN ETEBRM enterprise
AR &
*SNEBELER
Chongging Ngai Hing Hong ~ The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Plastic Materials Limited * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R#& BEBRBRE
BEREMBRETEBRY enterprise
AR B
*OEBELF
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35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

@

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability companies. All

subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
(“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or surplus assets of
NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or vote at any general

meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the holders of
the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

35

e MBI RMEE

TEMBEARE)
B -

@ FARBERERERTHSEMKL
ZHBRREREREMERR - AR
PERLIZHBRRLRIIEEER
=,

(b) BB LAz EEMBRARNgi Hing
(International) Company Limited AN
RIEERAI  HRAAREERE -

0 REZBRHARAFARE]ER
FRERRN ZFEABEL2RREY
HARRBEED R TEERELIE
BB B RERASRE K
FREBRRAGINEG LEER -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR £ @R E 4B TE BRI
EEBRNHAAROUBEZSRG 2
RERiE -

(d) ti’%’i‘lﬁ%%wﬁ“ﬁ$¢fiﬁﬁﬁi
BYEIRNASKEEEFEZIR
DZAREHBAF o §$%ﬁﬁﬂ%@§”
HoMBARZHBESERBRIT
Ko
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36 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 36
(a)  Acquisition of additional interest in NHH Worldwide Logistics Limited (a)
("NHWL")
On 30th September 2017, the Group acquired 10.1% of effective interest
shareholding of NHWL at a consideration of HK$1. The Group recognised
an increase in non-controlling interests of HK$520,000 and a decrease in
equity attributable to owners of the Company of HK$520,000. The effect
of change in the ownership interest of NHWL on the equity attributable to

owners of the Company during the period is summarised as follows:

REFEHERRNRS

WER BRI YT BRA
Wil B ME
RZZ—tENA=1H ' £5H
RIBTzREKEREYTE D
ZTH—2BERBAER A&
B e 52 FE 12 1) 25 3 0 520,000 78
FERARRMEENERR
520,000 7T © %ﬁﬁﬂim‘iﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁ

A#E

ERRNEPHHANEBERAR

EENERNT ERENT
HK$'000
THERT
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired BRI RROREE (520)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (HK$ 1) X TFIEEHEROEE(ET) —
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity BEX ANHED N ERT R (520)

(b)  Acquisition of additional interest in NHH Biodegradable Plastics Company (b)
Limited ("NBP")
During the year ended 30th June 2017, the Group acquired 5% of equity
interest shareholding of NBP at a consideration of HK$1,500. The Group
recognised an increase in non-controlling interests of HK$2,118,000 and a
decrease in equity attributable to owners of the Company of HK$2,120,000.
The effect of change in the ownership interest of NBP on the equity

attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised as

WHERFIR R BB IR L
RIR))BES Em
—E—+FX A=1+H " ££H
tx 1,500/ 7T 2 R ERBRERR
AZTHAZBRAER ARE
ﬁEMH*%M& SHEH02,118,0007%
T BERADRMEENERR
42,12000078 7T © R EIRRE PR

AI([RE

follows: RERGNEDHEANREENEAL
AIBENERNTERENT -

HK$’000

TER
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired BASEHIRRNREE (2,118)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interest (HK$1,500) T IEEHIERAEE(1,50087T) (2)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity BEXMOEEDI R ERTHER (2,120)
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37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 37

38

During the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group received a claim from a
customer in respect of the sales of alleged defective goods with claim amount

approximately RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,952,000).

On 10th July 2018, the Wenling City People's Court of Zhejiang Province (the
“Court”) has issued a judgement (the “Judgement”) and granted an order to
invalidate the claim against the Group. On 28th August 2018, an appeal was lodged
with the Court against the Judgement.

As at 30th June 2018, the legal adviser of the Group on this claim is of the opinion
that the Group has a good case to defend. On this basis, the Directors consider
that the claim will unlikely result in any matenial financial impact on the Group as at
30th June 2018.

e MBI RMEE

REAE
RBEZE-ZT—-A"FAA=Z1+HLHF
B AREUI-EPHAENTE
BEMRREARES500000T(EEH
5,952,000 B TT) B E o

RZZE-\FLATH WIZRED
AREBR (DA D fEHFIR(THIR ) I
BRHAEEIRER - RZF—/\FN
AZTN\R - ZRPRARRER R L
Lo

—T-N\ERASHA - AEEHE
REMRLSR, ERRAKEATE
s - Al EERAR-E-N\&
AAZTEEERTEUAEASRE
KEBHE -

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38 EMIAGRER)
2018 2017
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
it FHE AR
Financial assets - loans and receivables B EE-ERREKRR
Trade and bills receivables B S RUGI R BN E & 23 284,292 264,882
Other receivables and deposits Hi M Rize 8,953 9,204
Restricted bank deposits RE A RITER 25 35,799 22,989
Cash and cash equivalents BekBeEH 25 117,716 105,947
446,760 403,022
Financial asset - available for sale B EE-HHE
Avallable-for-sale financial asset AL ENBEE 20 2,000 2,000
Financial liabilities - fair value through profit orloss ~ BITSBE - AL BEEBERLE
Derivative financial instruments TESMITA 24 — 29
Financial liabilities - other financial liabilities MHaBE-EMiMEas REERA
at amortised cost
Trade and bills payables BHRNRRENEE 26 86,059 88,513
Other payables and deposits received Hi R RERET 2 25919 21,156
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 375,529 331,830
487,507 441,499
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39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

ARANEERRRRRRELE

COMPANY
Balance sheet RERRZ
2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B sE FET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARRE 62,711 62,711
Current assets TEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries R EPNGIE:N 107,642 108,335
Other receivables HAth pE U R 153 I3
Cash and bank balances B e RIRITH 102 18]
107,897 108,629
Total assets BEE 170,608 171,340
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SEMBERME
39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 39 FAEANEESRRRRESD )
COMPANIY (Continued)
Balance sheet (Continued) EELAX(#)
2018 2017
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P&t TR TRT
EQUITY 1B
Capital and reserves attributable to NARER AR R R
the Company's equity holders
Share capital ey 36,920 36,920
Share premium A B 62,466 62,466
Other reserve HEHEE 39 (3 62,511 62,511
Retained eamings RERF 39 (a) 8,090 8,896
Total equity s 169,987 170,793
LIABILITY &BE
Current liability ik IE=R
Accruals JEIRER 621 547
Total equity and liability wpEzREE 170,608 171,340
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on ARAMEBEEARREHESTEN_T
27th September 2018 and were signed on its behalf —NFAAZTERYE  URERES
ERE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
A FFEL
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EY] BT EREFEEIE
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39 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE

COMPANIY (Continued)

Balance sheet (Continued)

Note: (@) Reserve movement of the Company

39 FRANEERBRNRAEEZD @)

HEARF (M)
i ) AARREE

Other reserve —

contributed

surplus
(Note)
HitfiE - Retained
BEREH earnings Total
(F&E) RERF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TEx
At Ist July 2016 —Z-X"FtA-AH 62511 2376 64,887
Profit for the year ZFEL‘NHJ — 10,212 10212
2016/17 interim dividend paid INZT—R/—t5E
FEIRS — (3692) (3.692)
At 30th June 2017 RZE—+F A=+H 62,511 8,896 71,407
At st July 2017 —t&tA—8 62,511 8,896 71,407
Profit for the year Aiﬂﬁl = 10,270 10,270
2016/17 final dividend paid IRZT—5K/2%—
FERERS = (7.384) (7,384)
2017/18 interim dividend paid S A T
EETHRE = (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2018 RZE—-N\ERA=TH 62,511 8,090 70,601
Note: MisE -

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the consolidated
shareholders' funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at the date on which the
Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued under the

Reorganisation. At Group level the contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves

of the underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

hFHB#E

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years are as AEERBENAMBREEBF XE  BE
follows: REBEmT

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$000 ~ HK$O000  HK$000
TERT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Results £
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity NERREN

holders of the Company wAl/ (EE) 46,171 34430 (26,492) 25,225 3241
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERE 1,049,595 953013 847,339 959,403 953357
Total liabilities BERE (515,554)  (469816)  (391618)  (440972)  (460037)
Non-controlling interests eIl g (24,826) (23,065) (20,384) (21,336) 21,461)
Capital and reserves attributable to NG EY AN

the Company's equity holders K& 509,215 460,132 435,337 497,095 471,859

Annual Report & £ # & 2017/2018 | 175



Schedule of Principal Properties

FRYER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT REM=
As at 30th June 2018 and 2017, the Group had the following investment properties in RZZE-N\ERZZ—+tF~A=1+H *&E
Hong Kong and The People’s Republic of China (“PRC"): RENREERPEARANE(THE])2&
Bx
As at 30th June 2018 R-E-NNEAA=FH
Category Group’s
Description Addresses Usage of lease term interest
i i 4 Rz HEEsE FREED
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Floor, Factory ~ Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory [SES 1
IXREE-FE Units 1,2,3,4,5, 6,7 and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8
on | Ith Floor, Factory Unit 3 on [2th Floor and Roof 3, Hopeful
Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEI D BARMREE-155 RAREE 10-16 5K BB EA
D2BAE 3BIE (ETR8E 8H8E - 108123~
4:5 6 TRB8E IIBIRSE  2E3ERKRE 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Zhen, Industrial Medium 100%
units — PRC Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC T¥ R
TEREEMN —FE URPRERERENEHER BN  TEAE
Car park units — Hong Kong Car Parks 3, 14 and |5, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo ~ Commercial Short 100%
FBEA—FE Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New [GES 2 H
Territories, Hong Kong
BEH D HNRNRIE - 1558 RRBEAT 10- 1658 BB T
BL3 - 14 R ISREEN
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614 and 1615, 16th Level, Modo Nanjing Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — PRC Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing Road, Nankai District, e 1

BERAZBAM—FE  Tianjin PRC
PR B K T R B [ AR B 349 5 MODO B RIS T R A 16
16121613 1614 1615%
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Schedule of Principal Properties
FEYER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (Continued) RENX#)
As at 30th June 2017 REFE—+FNA=+H
Category of Group's
Description Addresses Usage lease term interest
EpA ih]n fg  HESNE  AREfED
Industrial building Factory Unit 4 on 2nd Floor, Factory Unit 2 on 3rd Floor, Factory ~ Commercial Medium 100%
units — Hong Kong Units 7 and 8 on 6th Floor, Factory Unit 8 on 8th Floor, Factory GES ]
TE¥EREE-FH Units 1,2,3,4,5, 6,7 and 8 on |0th Floor, Factory Units | and 8
on | Ith Floor, Factory Unit 3 on I2th Floor and Roof 3, Hopeful
Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEM D BARMRER - 15 RAREE 10-165F BB
D2B4E 3B2E 6BTRBE 8HE8E 10123
4°5 6 TRB8E IBIRSE  NBIERKRA 3N
Industrial building Industrial premises situated in Chiling Village, Houjie Industrial Medium 100%
units — PRC Zhen,Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC I¥ i Hf
TEAREN —FE IR EEREREMEHRREN 2 TXAE
Car park units — Hong Kong  Car Parks 3, 14 and 15, Hopeful Factory Centre, Nos. 9-15 Fo  Commercial Short 100%
FE-B/E Tan Road and Nos. 10-16 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New EES 2
Territories, Hong Kong
BEMADBNRIRIE-15F RAREE 10-165FBET %
B 14 % 15 SRR
Commercial office units Units 1612, 1613, 1614 and 1615, 16th Level, Modo Nanjing Commercial Medium 100%
and apartment — PRC Road Xintiandi Building, No. 349 Nanjing Road, Nankai District, [HES 5

BEPLEEN—E

Tianjin, PRC
B K T R B [ AR B 349 5 MODO B RIS T A K = 16
161251613 1614 1615F
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NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2693 1663

Fax: +852 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:
No. 9 Dai Shun Street,
Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories,
Hong Kong

Tel: +852 2660 0208
Fax: +852 2667 4831

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: +86 (0) 769 8558 8755  Zip: 523940
Fax: +86 (0) 769 8558 1756
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Company Directory

ABlE™
Guangzhou Office: BNHBERE
A1806, Center Plaza, FEARANE
No. 161 Linhe Road West, BN
Tianhe District, Kl &
Guangzhou, WA 161 5%
The People’s Republic of China R BB B35 A 1806
Tel: +86 (0) 20 3831 0226  Zip : 510620 T:E 1 +86(0) 203831 0226 EERARSE : 510620
Fax: +86 (0) 20 3831 0223 fBE : +86 (0) 20 3831 0223
Shanghai Office: LEHWEE
Unit E, 16th Floor, PEARAME
Zhao Feng Universe Building, Ligm
No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road, PR 1800 5%
Shanghai, KEIRFAE
The People’s Republic of China |6 12 EFE
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6440 3351 Zip: 200235 BiE 486 (0) 21 6440 3351 BERARSE : 200235
Fax: +86 (0) 21 6440 0373 fBE : +86 (0) 21 6440 0373
Shanghai Factory: LRt
No. 8100, Songze Ave. hEE AR AFE
Qingpu Industrial Zone, Egm
Shanghal, BRIERRE
The People’s Republic of China FAEANIE 81005
Tel: +86 (0) 21 6921 3333 Zip: 201707 T:E 1 +86 (0) 21 6921 3333 BWERRSE : 201707
Fax: +86 (0) 21 6921 5555 fBE : +86 (0) 21 6921 5555
Qingdao Factory: EERIL
Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone, hEARAME
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao, EERMNEERMRER
The People’s Republic of China AR (BN ERTXE
Tel: +86 (0) 532 8727 3100  Zip: 266300 EiE 1 +86 (0) 532 87273100 EEAR - 266300
Fax: +86 (0) 532 8727 3110 fEE : +86 (0) 532 8727 3110
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Company Directory

ATEiE™

Chengdu Office: RAM =R

Room 2919, Building B, hEE AR AME

Longhu 3000 Constellations, 79114 B & i

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3, BRI =BR=%

Chengdu City, Sichuan Province, EH=TER

The People’s Republic of China BEE2919 5%

Tel: +86 (0) 28 8328 5026  Zip: 610051 T:E 1 +86 (0) 28 8328 5026 EBARSE ¢ 610051
Fax: +86 (0) 28 8328 5126 fEE : +86 (0) 28 8328 5126

Xiamen Factory: BB

No.|6-4 Putou Road, hEARKANE

Haicang District, BEEEMT

Xiamen City, Fujian Province, BER

The People’s Republic of China IR 16455

Tel: +86 (0) 592 6093211  Zip: 361027 FiE 1 +86(0) 592 6093211 EPEURSE : 361027
Fax: +86 (0) 592 6093600 fEE : +86 (0) 592 6093600

Tianjin Office: RERER

Room 1616, No. 349 Nanjing Road, hEE AR

Nankai District, Tianjin, RETE R

The People’s Republic of China HRE349F 1616 %

Tel: +86 (0) 22 8752 8026  Zip: 300073 B0 +86 (0) 2287528026 EEARSE : 300073
Fax: +86 (0) 22 8752 8109 fBE : +86 (0) 22 8752 8109

Chongging Office: ERMER

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center, hE A RAME

No. 28 Minquan Road BEMATE

Yuzhong District, Chongging, R HERK 28 5%

The People’s Republic of China EMBEREET 03601 E

Tel: +86 (0) 23 6382 0020  Zip: 400010 B0 +86(0) 2363820020 EBEARSE : 400010
Fax: +86 (0) 23 6382 0090 fEE : +86 (0) 23 6382 0090
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